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 1 people to express that level of entitlement to


 2 a car that, you know, they're being allowed to


 3 use for purposes of doing their job.  It's not


 4 their personal property.


 5 He indicated that, you know, I need


 6 this because of, you know, a leg problem, a


 7 back problem.  I can't remember what the


 8 specifics were.  So I approached human


 9 resources and, you know, we agreed that, okay,


10 you know, to get past this hurdle, let him have


11 his car, but in the future he would have to


12 submit some type of medical request to deviate


13 from the company policy.


14 Q. And was this a transition into this


15 different car, did everybody else on the team


16 eventually kind of get that car as they needed?


17 A. Over the years the company


18 definitely is moving in that direction, getting


19 away from four-wheel drives, cars so as people


20 come up they are rolling more and more into a


21 Ford Fusion.  I believe everybody on my team


22 now, with the exception of one individual who


23 lives in Denver and goes into mountainous


24 areas, has been transitioned to the Ford


25 Fusion.
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 1 Q. Smaller car?


 2 A. Smaller car, yeah.  For the most


 3 part, the indirect channel managers, that's the


 4 position that Barry was transitioning into,


 5 they carry very little inventory.  The products


 6 we sell are very small.  There's really not a


 7 need to have a large car and the saving to the


 8 company is pretty significant to go with the


 9 sedans versus SUVs.


10 Q. There was some discussion earlier


11 and Mr. Adickes testified about some text


12 messages that had been sent from him to you.


13 Can you kind of explain the circumstances of


14 what was going on when you received those text


15 messages and the time frame?


16 A. Oh, gosh.  It was sometime last


17 fall.  I was in Florida working and seemed to


18 me, if I recall correctly, one evening I got


19 this text message from Barry.  I immediately


20 forwarded it to Brooke because I didn't feel it


21 was, you know -- didn't feel appropriate, I was


22 uncomfortable with it, and then he followed up


23 with a second one.  I don't believe I saw the


24 second one until the next day, but I couldn't


25 swear to that, the timing of the two.
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 1 Q. We've already testified to -- or


 2 Barry has already testified to the content of


 3 the text messages, but do you agree what was


 4 read into the record previously was accurate as


 5 to what you received?


 6 A. Yeah, that was right from the text


 7 message.


 8 Q. While he was working under your


 9 supervision, did he ever complain of any


10 headaches?


11 A. Yes.  Immediately after the


12 accident, you know, following up with him when


13 he came off of his medical leave, you know, he


14 said, "Yeah, I'm still having headaches from


15 time to time."  I remember having a team


16 meeting in Alpharetta and he had a headache


17 and, you know, my response was, you know, "What


18 can we do for you and, you know, do what you


19 have to do."


20 And it seemed to me that over time,


21 you know, his comments -- it wasn't routine


22 that he would complain about the headaches and


23 that over time, you know, I don't recall


24 hearing about them.  He seemed to be working


25 through the issue and that satisfied my
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 1 curiosity and I felt I was doing what I was


 2 supposed to do as a manager.


 3 Q. Down the road after -- immediately


 4 after his accident, but down the road from


 5 there, would he ever call and say, "I need to


 6 take a day?  I've got a headache.  I'm out of


 7 commission today," or anything like that?


 8 A. I don't recall that.  I recall at


 9 some point, I guess it was in 2013, you know,


10 he had some issues with, you know, other


11 operations, knees or something.  There were


12 some other, you know, physical ailments that he


13 had.  I don't recall that they specifically


14 were tide to his accident, you know.  


15 It seemed to me, if memory serves me


16 correctly, he had issues with his knees and had


17 to take some time off for a couple of


18 operations, but I could be wrong about that.


19 It could have been shoulders.  It could have


20 been neck.  I wasn't that focused on it.  I


21 vaguely remember, you know, again, do what you


22 need to do.  And, you know, he probably took


23 PTO, you know, on days that he had to have


24 those procedures done, but he was not off, if


25 memory serves me correctly.  He did not take
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 1 any extended period of time off.


 2 Q. Based on your prior experience with


 3 Barry in supervising him both before the


 4 accident and after the accident, would you say


 5 that you noticed in change in him?


 6 A. I didn't notice any change in him.


 7 I never had any comments from his co-workers,


 8 those that were closely -- you know, more


 9 closely related working with him on a


10 day-to-day basis.  There was a hospital rep and


11 then the person that Barry swapped positions


12 with.  I never received any feedback of, hey,


13 there's an issue there, you know.  His


14 performance is about the same.  His, you know,


15 approach to business was about the same.


16 Q. And based on what you had heard


17 about Barry or your knowledge of him before he


18 came under your supervision, would you say that


19 your experience with him lined up with what


20 your expectations were based on your feedback?


21 A. Yeah.  I found him a likable guy, a


22 guy you'd love to have a beer with, a guy that


23 I was concerned about performance with.  My


24 income and my job security are tied to my


25 employees' ability to perform.  I was concerned
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 1 about lack of follow-up, that was before and


 2 after the accident.


 3 Frankly, when I ran into those


 4 concerns after the accident, I didn't tie them


 5 to the accident because I had experienced that


 6 and had feedback, you know, prior to the


 7 accident.  And, yeah, I saw that there were


 8 occasions where, you know, he was a bit chippy


 9 when you provided coaching.  If you were


10 critical and, you know, tried to provide him


11 direction, he was, at times, a little chippy.


12 MR. OXFORD:  No further questions.


13 THE COURT:  All right.  Thank you.


14 Mr. Smith.


15 MR. SMITH:  Thank you.


16 CROSS-EXAMINATION 


17 BY MR. SMITH:  


18 Q. Mr. Johnson, you have been at


19 Philips since 1997?


20 A. Yes, sir.


21 Q. So you've been there 18 years?


22 A. Yes, sir.


23 Q. And you've been the regional sales


24 manager there for nine years, since '06?


25 A. Since '06.  Yes, sir.
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 1 Q. Would you consider yourself a loyal


 2 employee of Philips?


 3 A. Yes.


 4 Q. And you're the person that Philips


 5 has here today representing them to testify


 6 concerning Mr. Adickes; is that correct?


 7 A. I was asked to testify on what I


 8 knew about the situation.


 9 Q. What do you earn at Philips?  What's


10 your pay?


11 A. I would -- 


12 MS. PAYNE:  Objection.  Relevance.


13 THE WITNESS:  -- rather not say.


14 MR. SMITH:  Your Honor, it goes to


15 bias.


16 THE COURT:  It does indeed.


17 Overruled.  


18 BY MR. SMITH:  


19 Q. What do you make at Philips?


20 A. My base salary is $130,000, and then


21 I have incentive of $55,000.


22 Q. Do you have any bonus structure on


23 top of that 55?


24 A. No, sir.


25 Q. So 135 plus 55, you make 190 a year?
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 1 A. If my team performs 100 percent.


 2 Yes, sir.


 3 Q. Okay.  Now, you started


 4 supervising -- actually, let me back up.


 5 Mr. Adickes was transferred to your team


 6 effective January 1, 2011; is that correct?


 7 A. Yes, sir.


 8 Q. But as you -- as he testified to


 9 earlier and as you now recall, there was a


10 transition period in there.  So he didn't


11 actually come work full-time for you on --


12 A. No, he worked full-time for me.


13 Q. But there was a transition he was


14 working --


15 A. In between his EMS role which


16 reported to me and his new role which reported


17 to me.  He did not report to another manager


18 after January 1st.


19 Q. And you recall me taking your


20 deposition a couple months ago?


21 A. Yes, sir.


22 Q. By telephone?


23 A. Yes, sir.


24 Q. And you told me in that deposition


25 that you had never met Mr. Adickes prior to him
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 1 coming to work for you; is that correct?


 2 A. I cannot recall.


 3 Q. Would you like me for me to show it


 4 to you in the deposition?


 5 A. Sure.  


 6 Q. I'm referring to Page 9 of the


 7 deposition, Line 4.  I said, "Did you know


 8 him" -- excuse me.  Let me back up a couple of


 9 lines.  "You began managing him January 1,


10 2011?"  And what was your answer?


11 A. Yes, sir.


12 Q. "And did you know him prior to that


13 time?"


14 A. I said, "I knew of him.  I did not


15 know him closely.  We may or may not have met.


16 I can't recall."


17 Q. So if you had ever met him, you're


18 not even sure you had met him prior to him


19 coming to work for you; is that right?


20 A. I had time to think about it since


21 and I met him at a Southeastern Emergency


22 Equipment meeting.  He was there.  He did not


23 participate in the meeting.  He was there.


24 Q. It was, "Hi, I'm Barry Adickes.


25 Hello," and that's it?
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 1 A. Basically, yes.


 2 Q. Okay.  So other than a chance


 3 meeting at a meeting, you had never met him


 4 till he came to work for you?


 5 A. That would be correct.


 6 Q. Now, Mr. Adickes was injured on


 7 March 23, 2011; is that correct?


 8 A. I believe so.


 9 Q. So he had been under your


10 supervision for 11 weeks at the time of his


11 accident; is that right?


12 A. Yes, sir.


13 Q. Now, when I took your deposition, we


14 had not yet been provided performance


15 appraisals, and I think you told me you had not


16 reviewed any performance appraisals other than


17 the ones that you may have completed yourself


18 of Mr. Adickes; is that right?


19 A. Yes.


20 Q. I have since been provided with


21 those performance appraisals.  Have you had an


22 opportunity to review those performance


23 appraisals since I took your deposition?


24 A. Yes, sir, I have.


25 Q. And did you review those performance
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 1 appraise in preparation for your testimony


 2 today?


 3 A. I took a quick glance at them, yes.


 4 Q. You also told me, I believe, that


 5 you had never -- you had never seen the -- had


 6 you seen the PIP before?


 7 A. I had not seen his PIP.


 8 Q. That's the performance improvement


 9 plan?


10 A. Performance improvement plan, yeah.


11 Q. And that is the plan that he was


12 placed on in 2009 because his sales were


13 lagging; is that correct?


14 A. I'm assuming.  I did not manage him


15 then.


16 Q. Have you reviewed that in


17 preparation for your testimony today?


18 A. No, sir.


19 Q. I'm looking at Page Exhibit D-17


20 from defendants' exhibit package, and this was


21 to Barry Adickes from James Hendricks, copy to


22 Tracy DeBruhl (phonetic).  Tracy DeBruhl is in


23 HR, correct?


24 A. Yes, sir.


25 Q. Who is James Hendricks?
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 1 A. That would have been a former


 2 regional manager.


 3 Q. Okay.  And did they state in there,


 4 "Barry, I know that your sales territory has


 5 been harshly affected by the economic downturn.


 6 The State of North Carolina has been especially


 7 hard hit with state and county employee layoffs


 8 and furloughs."


 9 A. That appears to be what's in that


10 memo.


11 Q. Now, you guys do a performance


12 evaluation at the end of each year, correct?


13 A. Yes.


14 Q. And 2009 was the year that


15 supposedly Barry's sales lagged, right?


16 A. Yes, sir.


17 Q. Now, this PPM or people performance


18 management form, is completed by Paul Stoddard.


19 Who is Mr. Stoddard?


20 A. He would have been the regional


21 manager that took the place of Jim Hendricks. 


22 Q. He was Barry's direct supervisor at


23 that time?


24 A. At that time, yes.


25 Q. In fact, he's your boss now, I
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 1 believe; is that right?


 2 A. Yes, sir.


 3 Q. All right.  Now, let me get you to


 4 look at this with me a little bit.  


 5 MR. SMITH:  And, Your Honor, for the


 6 record, this is Exhibit 2 in claimant's exhibit


 7 package.


 8 BY MR. SMITH:  


 9 Q. Now, this form is the performance


10 review for the year 2009, correct?


11 A. Yes, sir.


12 Q. It appears to have been completed on


13 January 2, 2010.  Does that look correct?


14 A. Yeah, that would make sense.


15 Q. Okay.  Now, at that time -- and


16 these -- on the right side of the page in the


17 shaded part -- you're familiar with these


18 forms?


19 A. Yes.


20 Q. That is the supervisor comments,


21 correct?


22 A. Yes, sir.


23 Q. And on that form he's stated, "I


24 started working with Barry in late November.


25 So far I've been impressed with all his key
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 1 areas of responsibility."  Is that what


 2 Mr. Stoddard said?


 3 A. It appears to be so.


 4 Q. And, again, he's your boss, right?


 5 A. Yes.


 6 Q. Now, the next thing says, "Given the


 7 economic conditions, I think Barry did a decent


 8 job versus AOP.  I've talked with Barry to


 9 express how critical it is to obtain quota on a


10 more regular basis.  Barry had a great December


11 2009 and I look forward to a great start in


12 2010;" is that correct?


13 A. It appears to be.


14 Q. 2009 was a pretty tough year


15 economically, wasn't it?


16 A. Every year is tough economically.


17 Q. Well, and I'm not speaking so much


18 of you guys.  But from a national standpoint,


19 we were in the worst recession we had been in


20 since the depression of 1929?


21 A. I believe that started in 2008, but,


22 you know, these have been challenging years.


23 Q. And, in fact, that's exactly what


24 Mr. Stoddard said on here.  He said -- well,


25 let me get you to review this one.  He says,
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 1 "Delighting customers is Barry's best strength.


 2 His willingness to dive into the most difficult


 3 customer-facing issues is impressive.  While


 4 doing this, he also finds time to be a great


 5 team player, to help me develop the rest of the


 6 region to the better, and is someone I can


 7 always depend on.  His passion for great sales


 8 results is extremely strong and I could not ask


 9 for more than he gives today.  I know that with


10 the return of a stronger economy that Barry


11 will have many years of over-quota results;" is


12 that correct?


13 A. It appears to be what is written.


14 Q. Okay.  Did you -- you were talking


15 about the things you heard about Mr. Adickes


16 before he came on your team.  Did you hear any


17 of this stuff?


18 A. No, sir.


19 Q. And in the manager's reflections on


20 Page 202 --


21 MR. OXFORD:  I'm just going to


22 object to best evidence of -- these are all


23 coming in as -- they are all being tendered


24 into evidence.  I mean, reading them into the


25 record is just like reading a medical report
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 1 into the record.


 2 THE COURT:  Which we did.  Go ahead.


 3 BY MR. SMITH:  


 4 Q. Manager's reflections.  "Even though


 5 Barry did not take any courses outside of his


 6 territory due to the financial cutbacks at


 7 Philips and the time-consuming customer-facing


 8 issues, I believe there was great development


 9 with Barry.  This was possibly the toughest


10 year we have all faced due to the recession and


11 cutbacks.  Everyone was doing the work of many


12 and this in itself produced an opportunity for


13 tremendous new knowledge and development.


14 We've all seen things and learned from them


15 this year and not happening in many years and


16 we have all furthered our knowledge base and


17 developed from this."


18 Would you characterize this as a


19 good performance review?


20 A. I would say that's pretty much a


21 boilerplate response.


22 Q. A boilerplate response?


23 A. Yeah.


24 Q. You would not characterize that as a


25 good performance review?
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 1 A. I would say that's an acceptable


 2 performance review.


 3 Q. Okay.  Well, let's keep going.  But


 4 he was on -- at this point in time when this


 5 performance review was coming out with all of


 6 this praise, he was on your PIP, correct?  He


 7 was supposed to be improving?


 8 A. I was not part of the PIP, so I


 9 don't know the timing of that plan, sir.


10 Q. All right.  Let me get you now to


11 review Defendants' Exhibit D-22.  And this,


12 again, is from Mr. Stoddard.  This is a letter


13 to Barry from Mr. Stoddard dated January 15,


14 2010, and in this letter he's congratulating


15 him on a great December.  He finished at 180


16 percent and number one in the region.  That's


17 good, isn't it?


18 A. That would be good.


19 Q. "I see great improvement in your


20 skills and I'm confident you'll continue to


21 achieve and produce great results for Philips."


22 That's good too, isn't it?


23 A. That would be good.


24 Q. Now, let me also ask before I get


25 into more of this performance stuff, when you
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 1 supervised Mr. Adickes, you would only see him


 2 in person five to six days a year, correct?


 3 A. Yeah, more or less.  Yes.


 4 Q. You were in Atlanta?


 5 A. These are field-based employees.  We


 6 don't have a lot of face time.


 7 Q. And most of your contact would be by


 8 e-mail?


 9 A. E-mail.  Some phone.  Probably


10 primarily e-mail.


11 Q. All right.  Now, the next


12 performance appraisal that I have here is


13 Exhibit 3.  This one is for the year 2010.


14 I'll show it to you.  Is that correct, that's


15 for the year 2010?


16 A. Yes.


17 Q. But you completed it even though he


18 was not your employee in 2010, correct?


19 A. I would have delivered it because it


20 would have been delivered in 2011.  So I would


21 have delivered, but I would not have written


22 it.


23 Q. When it says, "Manager, Mark


24 Johnson," you didn't write this stuff?  Is that


25 what you're saying?
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 1 A. No.


 2 Q. All right.  Would that have been


 3 Mr. Stoddard that did it?


 4 A. Yes.


 5 Q. Goes through, Barry meets or exceeds


 6 all of his key areas of responsibility?


 7 A. Uh-huh.


 8 Q. "Barry was on PIP for most of 2010


 9 and I'm thrilled to mention he has been removed


10 completely and is on his way to great things in


11 2011."


12 A. Apparently so.


13 Q. Good comments?


14 A. They would be good.


15 Q. "Barry does a fantastic job with his


16 channel partners.  His communication with them


17 is current and timely."  Isn't that what you


18 were complaining about, that he wasn't


19 communicating with his clients?


20 A. I didn't write those comments, so I


21 stand by mine.


22 Q. But your comments or your


23 supervision of him did not occur until -- with


24 the exception of 11 weeks, all your supervision


25 of Mr. Adickes was after the injury; is that
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 1 right?


 2 A. Correct.


 3 Q. Okay.  But his supervisor before the


 4 injury said that his contact with his clients


 5 is current and timely; is that right?


 6 A. In that document, yes.  What he


 7 conveyed to me was different.


 8 Q. And that is the performance review


 9 for 2010, the calendar year prior to his date


10 of injury?


11 A. Yes, sir.  


12 Q. "Barry had an outstanding year in


13 2010.  He's taken his territory to a great


14 consistent performance level.  I would be


15 remiss if I did not state how professional and


16 upbeat Barry was throughout the entire PIP


17 process."  Good comments?


18 A. Good comments.


19 Q. "Stayed focused all year and really


20 paid off for him.  Great job, Barry."  Good


21 comments?


22 A. Good comments.


23 Q. "Barry does a very nice job with


24 Philips' values.  He works every day to embody


25 those values and I believe he comes across
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 1 professional and is exactly the type person we


 2 need here at Philips.  His ability to deliver


 3 great results this year was impressive and a


 4 great comeback for him."  Good comments?


 5 A. I would consider those good


 6 comments.


 7 Q. "I believe Barry will be well placed


 8 in his role for 2011.  If there's a desire to


 9 go to the next level, Barry could do that


10 within the two to three years of consistent


11 performance."  Good comments?


12 A. Good comments.


13 Q. And, again, this is a 2010 one, the


14 year prior to his injury?


15 A. Yes, sir.


16 Q. All right.  Let's go to the next


17 performance appraisal.  This one is for the


18 performance review of 2011, and this one you


19 actually did complete; is that right?


20 A. Yes, sir.


21 Q. Now, "For 2011, Barry fell short of


22 meeting his financial commitment to the


23 company.  He finished the year at approximately


24 87 percent of AOP."  So that's something you're


25 not happy about, I assume; is that right?


KIMBERLY T. POWER, CCR    (803) 622-9057
-0448-







   152


 1 A. No, sir.


 2 Q. "Barry failed to manage his


 3 inventory to the goal of no writeoffs.  During


 4 the year, Barry had a writeoff of $652."  But


 5 that's equipment that was lost in his accident;


 6 is that right?


 7 A. That may or may not have been the


 8 case.  I don't know.


 9 Q. Okay.  I'm sorry.  I should have


10 gone on for you.  The next sentence says, "This


11 unit was lost as a result of Barry's accident."


12 A. (Witness shrugs shoulders.)


13 Q. "An area of concern is Barry's


14 timely territory status feedback.  Barry is


15 routinely among the last to respond to requests


16 for input from his manager."  These were things


17 you were not happy about; is that right?


18 A. Correct, sir.


19 Q. "2011 was a challenging year for


20 Barry.  Shortly after he began his new role of


21 indirect channel manager, Barry went on


22 short-term disability."  That was because of


23 his accident; is that right?


24 A. Yes, sir.


25 Q. "This no doubt showed his


KIMBERLY T. POWER, CCR    (803) 622-9057
-0449-







   153


 1 transition -- excuse me, slowed his transition


 2 into his new role.  Barry met several of her


 3 personal objectives, but failed to meet all of


 4 them, including his primary objective of


 5 meeting the AOP commitment to the company."


 6 Again, something you weren't happy about?


 7 A. Correct, sir.


 8 Q. "He fell short on delivering on his


 9 AOP commitment by finishing the year at only


10 78 percent."  So the year following his


11 accident, he did not meet his quota, correct?


12 A. Correct.


13 Q. "Barry has a wealth of experience


14 and should focus on sharing best practice ideas


15 for the team.  As a result, I believe that


16 Barry needs to focus on improving his sense of


17 urgency and driving results of his territory.


18 Barry should focus more attention on providing


19 feedback that adds more substance and value."  


20 Did you realize that you placed


21 three things in that performance appraisal on


22 your final comments about focus?


23 A. I didn't notice it until you pointed


24 it out.  Focus is the nice way of saying you're


25 not getting the job done in this area.  It's
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 1 not a clinical diagnosis.


 2 Q. Now, let me show you Page 199 of


 3 Claimant's Exhibits, Exhibit 1.  And explain


 4 this to me because this says at the top Tracy


 5 DeBruhl.  That looks like who it's from.  But


 6 then it says it's addressed to Barry and at the


 7 bottom it's signed by you.  Did you write that


 8 or did Tracy DeBruhl write that?


 9 A. I probably wrote that with Tracy.  I


10 had concerns and went to human resources and


11 they helped author that.


12 Q. This is March 9, 2012, almost


13 exactly a year from the time of Barry's


14 accident?


15 A. Uh-huh.


16 Q. And you say, "I believe your


17 performance is now suffering in areas,"


18 correct?  Feel free to look at it.


19 A. I'll take your word for it.


20 Q. Okay.  You go on to talk about, "in


21 the future, if you know you're going to be out


22 for the day or out of your territory for


23 personal business, you must enter into the one


24 portal under our leave request PTO."  Were you


25 aware that Barry was missing days from time to
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 1 time because of headaches?


 2 A. I don't know what the nature was and


 3 I don't recall the circumstances.


 4 Q. All right.  In the second paragraph


 5 you say, "You are exhibiting a lack of focus on


 6 time management in addition to your


 7 year-to-date number;" is that right?


 8 A. Yes, sir.


 9 Q. "My concern about your" -- next


10 sentence says, "We have concerns about time


11 management and/or focus;" is that right?


12 A. Yes, sir.


13 Q. Down here under this bullet you


14 say -- you talk about poor or slow follow-up,


15 correct?


16 A. Correct.


17 Q. And then at the bottom,


18 "Collectively they point to a potential problem


19 in both focus as well as territory management,"


20 correct?


21 A. Yes, sir.


22 Q. So in this e-mail to him, on four


23 different occasions you made comments about his


24 focus, correct?


25 A. Yes, sir.
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 1 Q. I'm assuming you haven't, but you


 2 haven't reviewed the neuropsychological


 3 evaluation from Dr. Waid or the deposition of


 4 Dr. Mandell, have you?


 5 A. No, sir.


 6 Q. On Page 35 of Dr. Mandell's


 7 deposition he says -- and I want to get you to


 8 see if this is similar with what you saw.


 9 "Where he did have difficulties were with


10 concentration, executive function, capacity to


11 sustain attention and concentration, difficulty


12 with attentional executive aspects of immediate


13 learning, or thought to be the complaints for


14 forgetfulness on daily pursuits.  Mild


15 executive dysfunction, shorter fuse, easy to


16 frustration."  The same things you were


17 commenting on here, wasn't it?


18 A. No, sir.


19 Q. Lack of focus, inability to


20 concentrate, those aren't the same things?


21 A. I said my comments are not clinical


22 in nature.  They are a function of you're not


23 getting the job done in my opinion.


24 Q. Which is a manifestation of exactly


25 what this clinical information says?
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 1 A. I can't speak to that, sir.


 2 Q. Likewise on Page 8 of Dr. Waid's


 3 report he said, "Mr. Adickes did demonstrate


 4 varied ability in his capacity to sustain


 5 attention and concentration."  Isn't that


 6 similar to what you were finding right here on


 7 these reports?


 8 A. No, sir, not in my mind.  Again, I'm


 9 not a clinician.


10 Q. You can't comment one way or the


11 other?


12 A. No.  I didn't exhibit -- or I did


13 not witness those issues.  I witnessed output.


14 Q. And that's all you could see, was


15 the output, because you only saw him five or


16 six days a year, correct?


17 A. Correct.


18 Q. I hesitate to even go into this, but


19 you said there was a problem with personal


20 charges on his AmEx bill, correct?


21 A. Yes, sir.


22 Q. Those came about when Mr. Adickes'


23 son was in a hospital in Virginia having


24 surgery.  They made him show a credit card and


25 that was the only card he had and he called and
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 1 reported that to you, didn't he?


 2 A. I don't recall that.  I recall


 3 numerous charges hitting his American Express


 4 corporate card from over an extended period of


 5 time, is how I remember it.


 6 Q. Well, we can get into that, but what


 7 you said in your performance appraisal was not


 8 that it was personal charges, but that his


 9 charges -- that he hadn't paid the bill on


10 time.  Do you recall that?


11 A. Likely that would be the first


12 notification to me is employee is past due.


13 Then when you start to look in and you see


14 personal charges, you know, you have two


15 issues.


16 Q. Let me go to Claimant's Exhibit 5,


17 and this would be another performance appraisal


18 that you completed for the calendar year 2012;


19 is that correct?


20 A. Yes.


21 Q. So that would be for the year -- two


22 years post-accident, not the year of the


23 accident?


24 A. 2012.


25 Q. Okay.  All right.  Once again, for
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 1 that year he finished at 96 percent of his AOP.


 2 So he didn't meet quota that year either,


 3 correct?


 4 A. Correct.


 5 Q. And you note on here that you had


 6 received complaints regarding being difficult


 7 to get in touch with Barry?


 8 A. Yes.  That would be consistent with


 9 my experience pre- and post-accident.


10 Q. That would be your experience for


11 those 11 weeks pre-accident?


12 A. Well, that was also the feedback


13 that I had received.


14 Q. But it's not showing up on any of


15 those performance appraisals, is it?  In fact,


16 it says quite the opposite of that on those


17 performance appraisals?


18 A. I didn't write those, sir.


19 Q. But had you read those prior to, you


20 would have had that feedback, right?


21 A. If I had read them, yes, I would


22 have had that feedback.


23 Q. And you state again, "Barry needs to


24 continue to focus on making himself available


25 providing timely responses."  So, again, you
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 1 question his focus?


 2 A. Yes, sir.


 3 Q. And you said, "Barry needs to focus


 4 attention on managing the situation more


 5 closely moving forward.  Barry will need to


 6 keep focused and demonstrate that he can


 7 deliver on the AOP commitment."  So in your


 8 final comments on his 2012 performance


 9 appraisal, three more times you question his


10 focus?


11 A. Yes.  And if I recall looking at


12 that final rating -- what was my final rating


13 for Barry?  That would be valued player,


14 delivers solid results.  So a good PPM provided


15 in the --


16 Q. Well placed is what I see on here.


17 A. Flip the page right there, valued


18 player.


19 Q. Now, you talked about the issues of


20 getting in touch with him from time to time?


21 A. Yes.


22 Q. Barry wasn't coming to you and


23 saying, "Hey, I've got a headache and I'm down


24 for two or three days," was he?


25 A. I don't recall that, no.


KIMBERLY T. POWER, CCR    (803) 622-9057
-0457-







   161


 1 Q. But it could certainly explain why


 2 you had a hard time getting in touch with him


 3 at times?


 4 A. I wouldn't be able to address that.


 5 Q. Just briefly on the phone call in


 6 which you terminated him, you do recall him


 7 asking you about if there was a probationary


 8 period, correct?


 9 A. I believe I stated that under oath


10 here today.


11 Q. And it is correct that since


12 January 17, 2014, Philips has not provided


13 Mr. Adickes with any employment, correct?


14 A. That's to the best of my knowledge,


15 no.


16 Q. And there's no offer for him to


17 return at this point in time, is there?


18 A. Not that I'm aware of.  I believe he


19 was free to, like all employees that were RIF,


20 to apply for jobs that became open at Philips.


21 Whether he has done that, I wouldn't have


22 visibility to.


23 MR. SMITH:  Thank you, sir.  No


24 further questions.


25 THE COURT:  Mr. Oxford.
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 1 MR. OXFORD:  Just briefly.


 2 REDIRECT EXAMINATION 


 3 BY MR. OXFORD:  


 4 Q. Prior to Barry coming under your


 5 supervision as far as his personal record


 6 something that was provided to you?


 7 A. It was not provided to me, no.


 8 Q. Is that something you could have


 9 logged on a computer and pulled up?


10 A. No.  I would have had to have made a


11 request to human resources.


12 Q. Go through some channels to get


13 that?


14 A. When we write these PPMs, it's all


15 done electronically.  I sign off on it


16 electronically, the employee signs off


17 electronically, it goes into an archive.


18 Frankly, in sales most people are really


19 focused on where they finish to quota.  And


20 once you're done with the PPM, it's -- you move


21 on pretty quickly.


22 Q. That was going to be my next


23 question.  As far as your experience with --


24 you supervised plenty of these sales


25 specialists.  In your experience are they more
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 1 concerned about the raw data or commentary?


 2 A. Commentary.  They're interested in,


 3 you know, first of all, did I hit AOP?  And the


 4 rest of it is kind of white noise still.


 5 Q. So they care more about the numbers


 6 than what's said?


 7 A. Oh, absolutely.


 8 Q. And you were shown an e-mail.  I


 9 believe it was an e-mail.  You were shown


10 Exhibit D, Page 22.  Is that correct, you were


11 just shown this e-mail by Mr. Smith?


12 A. Yes.


13 Q. I'm showing you "D," Page 21.  As


14 far as his performance at the end of 2009,


15 beginning of 2010, what do these numbers down


16 here -- what do those tell you?


17 A. Poor performance.  January,


18 28 percent.  February, 56 percent.  March,


19 54 percent.  As you can see, he achieved over


20 65 percent only once in the last six months.


21 Q. And that would have been it says


22 here in November.  So this e-mail was from May


23 2010, so November 2009?


24 A. Yes.


25 Q. Again, you were also shown an
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 1 exhibit that was on Page 199.  Let me get


 2 there.  Exhibit 12.  I'm sorry.  That's not


 3 right.  Claimant's Exhibit 1.  I apologize.


 4 This was the -- this was the letter from Tracy


 5 DeBruhl that was written to Barry?


 6 A. Uh-huh.


 7 Q. Written by you; is that correct?


 8 A. Yes.


 9 Q. And Mr. Smith pointed out that you


10 wrote this line.  Can you read the line that


11 starts right here, "In the future?"


12 A. "In the future if you know you're


13 going to be out for the day or out of your


14 territory for personal business, you must enter


15 in the one portal under leave request PTO


16 time."


17 Q. Does that say anything about why he


18 may have been out of the area during the time


19 that you were speaking of as far as the reason?


20 A. I really can't recall.


21 Q. It doesn't say that he was out of


22 the area for headaches?


23 A. No.  I mean, it could have been for


24 any number of reasons, you know.  Sometimes


25 sales reps, again, these are field-based
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 1 employees.  We're not with them all the time.


 2 Sometimes they will take time off and they


 3 forget to enter it into the system.  It may


 4 have been a reminder for that.  I can't recall


 5 anything at this point in time that


 6 specifically triggered that response.


 7 Q. Are you aware of -- this is an


 8 e-mail that was sent to you July 25, 2013.  Are


 9 you aware of these times where he asked for PTO


10 for other reasons not related to headaches?


11 A. Yeah, I remember that.  That seems


12 to be related to some of his other issues, yes,


13 the knee.


14 Q. Knee surgery, going to Alaska?


15 A. Yeah.  


16 Q. And so after counseling him on


17 proper procedure for asking for time off, he


18 would request time off if needed, if he was


19 going to be out of the area or if he was going


20 to be off work?


21 A. Correct.


22 Q. And do you recall any times where he


23 asked for time off related to his headaches?


24 A. I do not.


25 MR. OXFORD:  Nothing further from
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 1 me.  


 2 THE COURT:  Mr. Smith.


 3 RECROSS-EXAMINATION 


 4 BY MR. SMITH:  


 5 Q. In your deposition you indicated you


 6 didn't really -- correct me if I'm wrong.  You


 7 don't really care -- didn't really care when he


 8 was there or when he wasn't there as long as he


 9 got the work done; is that correct?


10 A. That's pretty much how field sales


11 is.  It's a performance-oriented position.


12 You're focused on are they delivering on their


13 financial commitment to the company or aren't


14 they?


15 Q. So if Mr. Adickes was down for two


16 days with a headache, he wouldn't have had to


17 call you to report that so long as he made the


18 work up; is that right?


19 A. He should be loading it into the


20 system if he was taking a sick day or PTO day.


21 Q. You were asked about his sales


22 numbers in 2009 when he was on the PIP, and I


23 don't want to go into this very much.  But by


24 the end of 2009, he finished at 180 percent and


25 number one in the region?
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 1 A. Yes.


 2 Q. And he was off the PIP?


 3 A. Yes.  And to me that would support


 4 the claim that this was not a performance


 5 decision that the company made.  The company


 6 changed their business model and --


 7 Q. I'm talk about 2009.


 8 A. No.  But I'm talking about his


 9 performance, you know, was not a factor in his


10 position being eliminated from the company.


11 MR. SMITH:  Thank you, sir.  No


12 further questions.


13 THE COURT:  All right.  Mr. Oxford.


14 MS. PAYNE:  Nothing further.


15 MR. OXFORD:  Nothing further.


16 THE COURT:  All right, sir.  You may


17 step down.  Any other witnesses?  


18 MS. PAYNE:  No, Your Honor.  


19 THE COURT:  All right.  That's your


20 case?


21 MS. PAYNE:  Yes.  We would like to


22 submit our APAs as an exhibit, but yes.


23 THE COURT:  All right.  Thank you


24 all very much.  That concludes this hearing.  


25 (The hearing concluded at 2:45 p.m.) 
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          1                             STIPULATIONS 
 
          2                         Commissioner Wilkerson:  Madame Court 
 
          3                    Reporter if you’ll call -- call the case. 
 
          4                    Thank you. 
 
          5                         Court Reporter:  Today is December 14th, 
 
          6                    2015.  This is South Carolina Workers’ 
 
          7                    Compensation case number 1102937.  This is 
 
          8                    the case of Barry -- somebody help me with 
 
          9                    the name -- 
 
         10                         Mr. Smith:  Adickes. 
 
         11                         Court Reporter:  -- Adickes -- thank you 
 
         12                    -- the Claimant versus Philips Healthcare, 
 
         13                    Employer and Fidelity and Guaranty is the 
 
         14                    Carrier.  The Appellant is the Defendant, 
 
         15                    represented by Brooke A. Payne.  The 
 
         16                    Respondent is represented by William L. 
 
         17                    Smith.  Each side is allowed ten (10) minutes 
 
         18                    for oral argument and the Appellant three (3) 
 
         19                    minutes in reply.  You are requested to argue 
 
         20                    the grounds of exception and stay within the 
 
         21                    record.  The Single Hearing Commissioner was 
 
         22                    Commissioner McCaskill. 
 
         23                         Commissioner Wilkerson:  Ms. Payne. 
 
         24                         Ms. Payne:   Good afternoon, 
 
         25                    Commissioners. 
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          1                         Commissioner Wilkerson:  Good afternoon. 
 
          2                         Ms. Payne:  May it please the Court. 
 
          3                         Commissioner Wilkerson:  Please. 
 
          4                      ARGUMENT FOR THE APPELLANT 
 
          5     By Ms. Payne: 
 
          6               My name is Brooke Payne.  I’m here on behalf of 
 
          7          the Defendants.  Just to briefly recap the facts in 
 
          8          this claim, the Claimant was an employee of Philips 
 
          9          Healthcare; he was working in medical device sales when 
 
         10          he was injured in a car accident in March of 2011.  He 
 
         11          sustained injuries to his head, neck and bilateral 
 
         12          shoulders.  He returned to work within two (2) months 
 
         13          after the accident in his regular position and he 
 
         14          continued to work for our employer for two and a half 
 
         15          (2 ½) years earning similar wages.  He was terminated 
 
         16          from Philips as a result of a reduction in force, which 
 
         17          had nothing to do with his performance.  He 
 
         18          subsequently obtained a job with BRI, wherein he earned 
 
         19          fifty-five thousand dollars ($55,000.00) a year, which 
 
         20          was a significant reduction from the wages he was 
 
         21          earning with our employer.  The Claimant is seeking 
 
         22          wage loss benefits.  As the Appellants we argue that 
 
         23          wage loss benefits are premature because the Claimant 
 
         24          is not at MMI for all of his compensable injuries, 
 
         25          specifically his right shoulder.  However, if the 
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          1          Commission finds that he is at MMI, we argue that he is 
 
          2          not entitled to wage loss benefits because he is unable 
 
          3          to meet his burden in that regard and that the 
 
          4          calculation of wage loss benefits in the award is 
 
          5          incorrect.  With regard to our first argument, the 
 
          6          Claimant is not at MMI; as the Full Commission is aware 
 
          7          MMI is a medical term used to indicate that a Claimant 
 
          8          has plateaued and that there is no additional medical 
 
          9          treatment or care that will lessen the degree of 
 
         10          impairment.  In South Carolina many Courts have 
 
         11          analyzed what type of future medical care or treatment 
 
         12          amounts to care that will lessen the period of 
 
         13          impairment.  Claimant argues that our position is 
 
         14          unsupported by case law but we have brought about quite 
 
         15          a few cases in support of our argument, which is mainly 
 
         16          because the Commissioner found that the Claimant was at 
 
         17          MMI based on a questionnaire response from an IME 
 
         18          physician, whereas he assigned him a PPD rating of 
 
         19          fifteen percent (15%) to the right shoulder but also 
 
         20          indicated that he is in need of future surgery to his 
 
         21          right shoulder.  I’ll -- I’ll just briefly recap a few 
 
         22          of the cases.  In the Gadson claim the Claimant had 
 
         23          been recommended for future injections, medications and 
 
         24          physical therapy; which the Court found was just for 
 
         25          further maintenance and the ATP specifically in that 
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          1          case said that no further surgery or invasive treatment 
 
          2          was required.  So, they found that the Claimant was at 
 
          3          MMI because the only treatment that was required was 
 
          4          for further maintenance and care, as opposed to 
 
          5          something invasive, like surgery.  Hall versus Reynolds 
 
          6          is the same sort of idea; the ATP rated and released 
 
          7          him and then the Claimant, because of additional pain, 
 
          8          sought further treatment with an IME physician who 
 
          9          subsequently performed surgery.  So, the Court looked 
 
         10          back and said that he actually was not at MMI before 
 
         11          the surgery since it reduced his pain effectively. 
 
         12          Here, the Claimant’s authorized treating physician is 
 
         13          Dr. Rentz; he performed a right shoulder surgery in 
 
         14          October of 2011.  And the last time the Claimant 
 
         15          returned to Dr. Rentz was in September of 2014, and Dr. 
 
         16          Rentz noted at that time that the Claimant continued to 
 
         17          have pain, was complaining of it popping and catching 
 
         18          and at that time we had sent him there for a rating and 
 
         19          release but Dr. Rentz stated that he -- that it wasn’t 
 
         20          time for a rating and release and rather than assigning 
 
         21          same, he sent the Claimant for an MMI of is shoulder 
 
         22          because of his complaints.  Dr. Barron, the IME 
 
         23          physician that I had spoke of earlier, had evaluated 
 
         24          the Claimant back in December of 2012.  At that -- 
 
         25          during that evaluation he found that the Claimant 
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          1          continued to complain of his -- complain of pain in his 
 
          2          right shoulder and he noted that he, quote/unquote “Had 
 
          3          unfortunately not responded to right shoulder surgical 
 
          4          treatment.”  It was the same physician that in January 
 
          5          of 2014, opined -- or assigned a rating of fifteen 
 
          6          percent (15%) to the shoulder but also continued to 
 
          7          recommend the surgery and it’s our contention that 
 
          8          since the -- Dr. Barron is recommending a surgery, the 
 
          9          Claimant is not at MMI and a finding of wage loss 
 
         10          benefits is premature at this time.  And -- however, 
 
         11          alternative -- alternatively, if the Commission is to 
 
         12          find the Claimant is at MMI, it’s our argument that he 
 
         13          is unable to meet his burden of proving a wage loss. 
 
         14          The -- per the Statute, this must be predicated upon 
 
         15          his showing of loss of earnings resulting from the work 
 
         16          injury.  Here the Claimant focuses on the -- Dr. Wade’s 
 
         17          neuropsychological report and argues that he has 
 
         18          suffered an extensive disability with regard to his 
 
         19          cognitive function.  I urge Your Honors to please read 
 
         20          the report from Dr. Wade; it’s -- it’s about nine (9) 
 
         21          pages long.  Claimant’s counsel and I have a -- we -- 
 
         22          we disagree about a -- I guess, the -- the summary and 
 
         23          the analysis of Dr. Wade’s findings.  He performed 
 
         24          about twenty-four (24) different tests on the Claimant. 
 
         25          Claimant’s counsel focuses on three (3) sentences, 
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          1          which are contained on the last page and argues that 
 
          2          Dr. Wade opined that the Claimant experiences ongoing 
 
          3          problems with focus, attention, executive aspects of 
 
          4          immediate learning, extensive -- I’m sorry -- executive 
 
          5          dysfunction and forgetfulness.  But if you read the 
 
          6          report you’ll notice that with regard to focus and 
 
          7          attention Dr. Wade noted that although the Claimant 
 
          8          reported a decreased capacity for sustaining attention, 
 
          9          he was assessed as well-oriented, alert and able to 
 
         10          register information.  I must say that I -- I’ve read 
 
         11          many of Dr. Wade’s reports and I was -- I was pretty 
 
         12          shocked to see this Defense friendly report coming from 
 
         13          a Claimant IME.  In summary, with regard to his focus 
 
         14          and attention, Dr. Wade noted that the Claimant did 
 
         15          demonstrate variability in his capacity to sustain 
 
         16          attention, otherwise his performance was suggestive of 
 
         17          intact brain behavior and functioning.  When it came to 
 
         18          his executive abilities of higher reasoning, he 
 
         19          performed, again, I think eleven (11) tests in that 
 
         20          regard, most of which the Claimant demonstrated a 
 
         21          superior range, high average or average range in 
 
         22          relation to others of his age and education.  Dr. Wade 
 
         23          found that Mr. Adickes was generally able to meet the 
 
         24          demands of higher reasoning and problem solving tests 
 
         25          and found that the evaluation revealed him to be 
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          1          functioning in the high average range of intellectual 
 
          2          abilities.  With regard to forgetfulness, the Claimant 
 
          3          points to one sentence in the summary section that 
 
          4          notes that the Claimant continues to complain of 
 
          5          forgetfulness; however, the sentence right behind that 
 
          6          sentence states, yet, an assessment of anterior great 
 
          7          memory generally revealed intact immediate learning 
 
          8          memory, as well as an efficient ability to retain and 
 
          9          recall information.  And the last line of Dr. Wade’s 
 
         10          report states that this neuropsych evaluation generally 
 
         11          provided favorable results.  So, it’s our opinion that 
 
         12          he does not have any cognitive dysfunction; even if he 
 
         13          did there is no indication that he has had any loss of 
 
         14          earning capacity resulting from it.  Claimant proffered 
 
         15          a vocational report from Dr. Joel Leonard, which we 
 
         16          argue should be granted no persuasive weight for many 
 
         17          reasons, one of which is that he placed the Claimant in 
 
         18          profile B, which is what he found assumed the Claimant 
 
         19          -- or he -- I’m sorry -- he came to that determination 
 
         20          because he assumed the Claimant’s termination was 
 
         21          performance based and that his current employment 
 
         22          represents a reduction in earning capacity.  And he 
 
         23          further noted that those were assumptions based only on 
 
         24          the Claimant’s own statements to him and he was the one 
 
         25          that actually recommended that a neuropsych evaluation 
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          1          be completed.  So, once we were provided with a 
 
          2          neuropsych evaluation from Dr. Wade, as well as we 
 
          3          obtained a lot of other documents from the employer, 
 
          4          which proved that the Claimant’s termination was a 
 
          5          result of a reduction in force, which was -- which 
 
          6          resulted in the termination of a hundred and fifty 
 
          7          (150) employees nationwide of Philips on that same 
 
          8          date, we provided all these personnel documents to Mr. 
 
          9          Leonard, we also provided him testimony from the 
 
         10          Claimant’s supervisor, which unequivocally showed that 
 
         11          the termination wasn’t performance related and that 
 
         12          even if it was the Claimant had the -- had performance 
 
         13          issues dating back to before the date of accident; so, 
 
         14          there was no indication that that would have been a 
 
         15          reason for terminating him afterwards.  We also 
 
         16          provided him with the neuropsych eval from Dr. Wade. 
 
         17          And during the deposition, after reviewing the 
 
         18          documents, Mr. Leonard actually agree that the Claimant 
 
         19          had documented performance issues before his work 
 
         20          injury, which he did not inform Mr. Leonard about.  He 
 
         21          agreed that he had no evidence that Mr. Adickes had 
 
         22          difficulties securing a job due to his work injury and 
 
         23          he also agreed that Dr. Wade provided a favorable 
 
         24          neuropsych report.  Having agreed to all that, he still 
 
         25          stuck to his opinion that even though the additional 
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          1          information gave him greater contemplation, and there 
 
          2          was certainly a possibility that the Claimant could 
 
          3          have fallen into profile A, which attributed his lower 
 
          4          wages to the labor market, he was going to maintain his 
 
          5          opinion.  Aside from those, you -- you know, the -- the 
 
          6          49 -- oh, I’m sorry -- 42-9-20 analysis leans on the 
 
          7          decreased -- decrease in wages stemming from the work 
 
          8          injury and the preponderance of evidence in the record 
 
          9          just tends to indicate that there was no decrease in 
 
         10          earnings resulting from the work injury.  You know, the 
 
         11          best evidence of the ability to earn post-injury wages 
 
         12          is earning those wages and if you continue to work for 
 
         13          an employer for two and a half (2 ½) years earning 
 
         14          similar, if not more, wages than he was working -- I’m 
 
         15          sorry -- earning pre-injury.  Again, his position was 
 
         16          eliminated as a part of reduction in force; it had 
 
         17          nothing to do with his work injury.  There was a short 
 
         18          period of time where he was unemployed between being 
 
         19          terminated with Philips and beginning to work at BRI; 
 
         20          he only applied at four (4) jobs in between that period 
 
         21          of time.  When he applied to those jobs he submitted 
 
         22          resumes where he portrayed himself as a capable 
 
         23          individual, an impactful speaker, expertly organized -- 
 
         24                         Commissioner Wilkerson:  Go ahead and 
 
         25                    finish your thought and then you’ll have 
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          1                    three (3) minutes in reply. 
 
          2               Ms. Payne:  -- in focus and comfortable with 
 
          3          issues and ease of delivery in the sales force. 
 
          4                         Commissioner Wilkerson:  Okay.  Thank 
 
          5                    you.  You’ll have three (3) minutes in reply. 
 
          6                         Ms. Payne:  I’ll pick up later. 
 
          7                         Commissioner Wilkerson:  Sure.  Mr. 
 
          8                    Smith. 
 
          9                         Mr. Smith:  May it please the 
 
         10                    Commission. 
 
         11                     ARGUMENT FOR THE RESPONDENT 
 
         12     By Mr. Smith: 
 
         13                         I’m going to, as always, give you all 
 
         14                    some handouts.  I apologize.  If I may 
 
         15                    approach? 
 
         16                         Commissioner Wilkerson:  Please. 
 
         17                         Mr. Smith:  There’s three (3) sets of -- 
 
         18                         Commissioner Wilkerson:  Okay.  Just 
 
         19                    pass them around. 
 
         20                         Mr. Smith:  -- what we’re going to 
 
         21                    discuss. 
 
         22                         Commissioner Wilkerson:  There we go. 
 
         23                    Thank you. 
 
         24                         Commissioner Taylor:  Thank you. 
 
         25               Mr. Smith:  I represent Barry Adickes.  Barry is a 
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          1          fifty-three (53) year old -- he’s a pretty smart 
 
          2          fellow; he’s a college graduate.  He worked for 
 
          3          twenty-two (22) years with Philips Healthcare and their 
 
          4          predecessor company.  He was -- he made a lot of money. 
 
          5          He was in medical sales.  He earned about a hundred and 
 
          6          twenty-four thousand dollars ($124,000.00) a year and 
 
          7          that, in fact, was his earns for the year prior to this 
 
          8          injury.  In March of 2011, he suffered a terrible 
 
          9          injury where he -- he went too fast on a curvy road, 
 
         10          went off a mountain, while he was on the job, and 
 
         11          careened down the mountain about a hundred (100) feet 
 
         12          and had to be extricated.  He had a brain injury, he 
 
         13          had bilateral shoulder injuries and he had a cervical 
 
         14          spine injury.  As you can tell, when you review this 
 
         15          record, Commissioner McCaskill did a very detailed, 
 
         16          very insightful order in this case, I’d like to take 
 
         17          credit for it but he did it; those findings of fact are 
 
         18          his findings of fact.  This case was tried for about a 
 
         19          whole day, the record on it is something like this 
 
         20          (demonstrating); it is enormous and he went through 
 
         21          every bit of it.  Their first argument is, is that the 
 
         22          Claimant is not at MMI; I’ve never heard that argument 
 
         23          from the Defense before but that’s the argument.  The 
 
         24          Curiel test is a test for maximum medical improvement 
 
         25          and that test is -- MMI means no further medical care 
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          1          will lessen the period of impairment.  This gentleman 
 
          2          has been treated for four (4) years.  He’s had a 
 
          3          shoulder surgery.  They -- they don’t contest MMI with 
 
          4          regard to the brain and with regard to the neck, only 
 
          5          with regard to the right shoulder.  There is a 
 
          6          recommendation that he will eventually have to have 
 
          7          another surgery on his right shoulder; Dr. Barron 
 
          8          testified it is very -- it’s certainly reasonable for 
 
          9          him to put that off as long as he can.  If you take 
 
         10          their argument to -- to what they’re saying here, that 
 
         11          means anytime you’ve got somebody with arthritis and 
 
         12          they’re going to have to have a total knee, they’re not 
 
         13          at MMI until they have that total knee somewhere down 
 
         14          the line.  The other thing about that is his shoulder 
 
         15          is not what is causing his permanent wage loss; his 
 
         16          brain injury is what’s causing his permanent wage loss, 
 
         17          along with his neck.  It does not matter -- so -- so, 
 
         18          further medical care is not going to tend to lessen his 
 
         19          impairment because his impairment is not caused by his 
 
         20          shoulder.  He has permanent impairment to his shoulder 
 
         21          but it’s not causing his wage loss.  So, we think 
 
         22          clearly he is at maximum medical improvement.  With 
 
         23          regard to the loss of earning capacity, as I told you 
 
         24          he made a lot of money and he’s actually -- and he is 
 
         25          -- and he -- and was a smart fellow.  He was out of 
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          1          work for a period of time; then he returned to work. 
 
          2          He had difficulties once he returned to work.  He was 
 
          3          -- he was terminated in January of 2014, they say 
 
          4          because of a RIF; my client says that they -- that, 
 
          5          yes, it was part of a RIF but they told me it was part 
 
          6          performance related.  Frankly -- and we fought about 
 
          7          that for hours during this hearing but the truth of the 
 
          8          matter is, it does not matter.  He has -- he is gone 
 
          9          from that job; they will not take him back and he 
 
         10          cannot obtain employment like that any further because 
 
         11          of his injury.  With regard to -- to why he was fired 
 
         12          and all that -- just so I get to do it very quickly -- 
 
         13          he had glowing performance reviews prior to this 
 
         14          hearing.  They put up a witness that had been his 
 
         15          supervisor eleven (11) weeks prior to this injury, and 
 
         16          then for the two (2) years after his injury; he was 
 
         17          eviscerated on cross.  His reviews of him after the 
 
         18          injury read like Dr. Wade’s report and Dr. Mandell’s 
 
         19          deposition testimony about his lack of focus and 
 
         20          inability to concentrate and focus; if you read those 
 
         21          reviews they -- they sound like you’re reading Dr. 
 
         22          Wade’s report.  Now, let me briefly go though this 
 
         23          evidence with you.  The first one here, page 96, that’s 
 
         24          Dr. Welshofer.  Dr. Mandell was the treating 
 
         25          Neurologist but Dr. Mandell does not rate; so, they 
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          1          sent him to Dr. Welshofer for a rating.  Dr. Welshofer 
 
          2          rates him as having a fifteen percent (15%) impairment 
 
          3          to the brain.  So, no question, he’s got a brain 
 
          4          injury; their authorized treating physician finds that. 
 
          5          I put them out of order, I -- I apologize.  Let me 
 
          6          start with the -- the second set here and this is Dr. 
 
          7          Wade’s evaluation; this is -- the last two (2) pages 
 
          8          because it’s a long report.  Mr. Adickes did 
 
          9          demonstrate variability in his capacity to sustain 
 
         10          attention and concentration.  It appears the compromise 
 
         11          from the intentional executive aspects of immediate 
 
         12          learning are causal for complaints of forgetfulness in 
 
         13          day-to-day pursuits.  Mild executive dysfunction 
 
         14          appears to be present potentially affecting both 
 
         15          cognitive and emotional domains.  Certainly in 
 
         16          day-to-day pursuits he likely experiences episodic 
 
         17          forgetfulness due to the interfering effects of 
 
         18          attention executive difficulties and headaches.  Now, 
 
         19          that’s good but they never once mention the report or 
 
         20          -- or the deposition of Dr. Mandell in their brief. 
 
         21          Dr. Mandell is the treating Neurologist that treated 
 
         22          him from the -- right after his injury all the way up. 
 
         23          Dr. Mandell’s deposition is amating.  “You talked 
 
         24          earlier about Mr. Adickes being -- and I don’t remember 
 
         25          exactly how you phrased it, but a highly functional -- 
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          1          functioning individual prior to the injury?  Yes.  When 
 
          2          a highly functioning individual suffers a brain injury 
 
          3          are there different consequences for those that are for 
 
          4          someone who is maybe not as intelligent?  They are, 
 
          5          because upon the job he has to do he’s got much a much 
 
          6          more sophisticated job that requires a much more amount 
 
          7          of executive functioning and higher cortical 
 
          8          functioning than anybody -- than somebody whose just, 
 
          9          not in offense, but let’s say bricklaying or something 
 
         10          like that.  That verbal fluency, concentration and 
 
         11          focus probably wouldn’t affect a bricklayer because 
 
         12          they don’t have to use those skills but if you have a 
 
         13          higher level of functioning then those skills are very, 
 
         14          very important for something at that level.”  All 
 
         15          right.  Then I asked him about the -- the neuropsych 
 
         16          eval.  “Is this neuropsych eval, is it consistent with 
 
         17          what you’ve seen?  It basically says exactly what I’ve 
 
         18          been saying word-for-word, practically, yes.”  And then 
 
         19          he goes on, “He did very well in most things, in fact, 
 
         20          he was in the superior range on many things; however, 
 
         21          what he did have difficulties with were concentration, 
 
         22          executive function, capacity to sustain attention with 
 
         23          concentration difficulty with intentional executive 
 
         24          aspects of immediate learning are thought to be the 
 
         25          complaints for forgetfulness on daily pursuits, mild 
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          1          dysfunction -- excuse me -- mild executive dysfunction, 
 
          2          shorter fuse, easier frustration.”  He goes on to talk 
 
          3          about how that’s the CEO of the brain.  “Do these 
 
          4          problems limit his performance in employment 
 
          5          opportunities?  I think they could depending on which 
 
          6          type of employment but, yes, at a high level of 
 
          7          employment” -- which he did -- “With high skills it 
 
          8          would limit.”  He goes on to talk about that, “Limits 
 
          9          his ability to multitask.  The headaches cause him to 
 
         10          miss days from work.  People with -- with high 
 
         11          intellect actually mask some of the problems on 
 
         12          testing.  His medication usage is a barrier to 
 
         13          employment.”  Then the -- “Was there any point during 
 
         14          your treatment of Mr. Adickes where you felt like he 
 
         15          was trying to pull the wool over your eyes?  Exactly 
 
         16          the opposite, in my opinion; he is the type of guy who 
 
         17          would minimize and try to rationalize what’s 
 
         18          happening.”  That’s the authorized treating physician. 
 
         19          Then Joel Leonard was deposed.  Joel testified -- Joel 
 
         20          first did his report and -- and found that he had 
 
         21          sustained wage loss and the wage loss he thought was -- 
 
         22          what he -- when he went back and he found a job making 
 
         23          fifty-five thousand dollars ($55,000.00) a year, he 
 
         24          thought that was about right what he could do, based on 
 
         25          his testing of him.  We went into this thing about, 
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          1          okay, what -- whether he was terminated for cause or 
 
          2          not for cause and all that but when he issued his 
 
          3          report, he didn’t have Dr. Mandell’s deposition and Dr. 
 
          4          Wade’s findings.  So, he went back and said, based on 
 
          5          all that, absolutely, I think that that is exactly my 
 
          6          opinion in this case.  In -- in their brief they accuse 
 
          7          Joel of intentionally misrepresenting Dr. Wade’s 
 
          8          report.  They accuse Commission McCaskill of not 
 
          9          reading Dr. Mandell’s deposition.  This is just a -- 
 
         10          they didn’t go get any evidence in this case.  They 
 
         11          didn’t get a voc eval, they didn’t get a neuropsych 
 
         12          eval and now they don’t like what that evidence says 
 
         13          and they’re filing an appeal on that.  And by the way, 
 
         14          he -- he did do his own job -- job search; he tried -- 
 
         15          he went all over the place looking for jobs.  He 
 
         16          applied for over fifteen (15) jobs.  The fifty-five 
 
         17          thousand dollar ($55,000.00) job was the only job he 
 
         18          could find and unfortunately he lost it right before 
 
         19          the time of this hearing.  With regard to the 42-9-20 
 
         20          argument, they’re arguing that you can only get 
 
         21          temporary -- excuse me -- permanent wage loss benefits 
 
         22          for the three hundred and forty (340) weeks 
 
         23          post-injury.  Well, they forget the second sentence of 
 
         24          that Statute that says if there’s -- if there’s been 
 
         25          temporary total paid that doesn’t apply.  Secondly, 
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          1          what they’re asking you to do here -- and by the way, 
 
          2          the Bass versus Kenco case says that.  What they’re 
 
          3          asking you to do here is to part from the way wage loss 
 
          4          awards have been done in South Carolina since 1935.  As 
 
          5          far as I know, I’ve been doing this thirty-one (31) 
 
          6          years now and I’ve gotten plenty of wage loss awards 
 
          7          and I’ve never seen a wage loss award limited from 
 
          8          three hundred and forty weeks (340) from date of 
 
          9          injury.  There’s -- there’s -- the only case on that 
 
         10          point that I’m aware of is the Bass v. Kenco case and 
 
         11          it says if there’s temporary total paid you -- it 
 
         12          doesn’t matter.  So, I think the evidence is clear 
 
         13          here.  There was absolutely -- that he is at MMI, the 
 
         14          wage loss was proved -- 
 
         15                         Commissioner Wilkerson:  Finish your 
 
         16                    thought. 
 
         17               Mr. Smith:  -- and the -- the award as found by 
 
         18          Commissioner McCaskill was proper.  Thank you. 
 
         19                         Commissioner Wilkerson:  Three (3) 
 
         20                    minutes in reply, Ms. Payne. 
 
         21                         Ms. Payne:  Okay.  To reply quickly. 
 
         22                      RESPONSE FOR THE APPELLANT 
 
         23     By Ms. Payne: 
 
         24               Just to go back to the loss of earning capacity. 
 
         25          When he applied for the subsequent job at BRI, he noted 
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          1          on his -- on his application that he -- the base salary 
 
          2          he was requesting -- the desired base salary was 
 
          3          fifty-five thousand dollars ($55,000.00).  He also 
 
          4          testified that soon after his termination from Philips 
 
          5          he already had a job offer from BRI but he didn’t 
 
          6          accept it for a few months later, for whatever reason. 
 
          7          I’m surprised at the -- the continued discussion about 
 
          8          how he applied for over fifteen (15) jobs because, 
 
          9          again, he -- he had only testified that he applied for 
 
         10          four (4) and didn’t bring a single application or 
 
         11          anything -- any other witnesses -- to the hearing. 
 
         12          More importantly, with regard to the award of wage loss 
 
         13          benefits, it -- the Statute -- this isn’t a statutory 
 
         14          interpretation issue; this is a plain language of the 
 
         15          Statute issue.  49 -- 42-9-20 is clear wherein it 
 
         16          states, in no case shall the period of such 
 
         17          compensation be greater that three hundred and forty 
 
         18          (340) weeks from the date of accident; in no case 
 
         19          shall, that’s mandatory language.  I -- I don’t 
 
         20          understand the argument about if TT is paid beforehand 
 
         21          that extends the weeks.  I -- I think that the language 
 
         22          actually states that if the partial disability occurs 
 
         23          after a period of temporary -- I’m sorry -- of total 
 
         24          disability that’s paid, then there’s -- there’s no 
 
         25          offset in that regard; I think that is supported by the 
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          1          case law but I -- I’ve yet to read a case that says 
 
          2          that receipt of total disability benefits means that 
 
          3          there -- there is no maximum weeks that can be awarded 
 
          4          with regard to wage loss benefits.  You know, based on 
 
          5          if -- if the award of wage loss benefits stands, we 
 
          6          argue that it -- those shouldn’t commence until the 
 
          7          date of MMI, which is questionable regarding the facts 
 
          8          of this case since permanency -- permanent benefits, 
 
          9          you know, they -- they occur on a -- or benefits occur 
 
         10          on a continuum and permanency ones come after MMI.  So, 
 
         11          it would be from the date of MMI until three hundred 
 
         12          and forty (340) weeks from the date of accident; in 
 
         13          that case three hundred and forty (340) weeks from the 
 
         14          date of accident is September 16th, 2017.  So, it’s our 
 
         15          argument that -- first of all that -- that the Claimant 
 
         16          is not at MMI, so permanency -- a permanency award is 
 
         17          premature at this time.  If Your Honors do find the 
 
         18          Claimant at MMI, that he is not able to meet his burden 
 
         19          of loss of wages resulting from the work injury.  If 
 
         20          Your Honors find that he is at MMI and is entitled to 
 
         21          wage loss benefits, that the award should only run from 
 
         22          the date of MMI until the date that is three hundred 
 
         23          and forty (340) weeks from the date of accident based 
 
         24          on the plain language of the Statute.  Thank you. 
 
         25                         Commissioner Wilkerson:  Thank you all. 
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          1                         Commissioner Beck:  Thank you. 
 
          2                         Commissioner Wilkerson:  This concludes 
 
          3                    the hearing.  Thank you. 
 
          4      (THERE BEING NO FURTHER DISCUSSION, THE HEARING CONCLUDED 
 
          5                               AT 2:42 P.M.) 
 
          6 
 
          7 
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          9 
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         25 
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                STATE OF SOUTH CAROLINA  ) 
                                         )         CERTIFICATE 
                COUNTY OF RICHLAND       ) 
 
 
                     Be it known that I took the foregoing South Carolina 
                Workers' Compensation Commission Full Board Hearing of Barry 
                Adickes, vs. Philips Healthcare; 
 
                     That I was then and there a Notary Public in and for 
                the State of South Carolina-At-Large; 
 
                     That by virtue thereof I was duly authorized to 
                administer an oath; 
 
                     That the witness was first duly sworn to testify the 
                truth, the whole truth, and nothing but the truth, 
                concerning the matter in controversy aforesaid; 
 
                     The foregoing transcript of 24 typewritten pages 
                represents a true, accurate and complete transcription of 
                the testimony so given at the time and place aforesaid to 
                the best of my skill and ability; 
 
                     That I am not related to nor an employee of any of the 
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                or counsel employed by the parties hereto, nor interested in 
                the outcome of this action; 
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1      PURSUANT TO NOTICE OF HEARING, THE WITHIN HEARING


2 WAS TAKEN BY THE ABOVE-NAMED COURT REPORTER, A NOTARY


3 PUBLIC FOR THE STATE OF SOUTH CAROLINA, IN ROCK HILL,


4 SOUTH CAROLINA.


5 * * * *     * * * *     * * * *     * * * *


6 BY COMMISSIONER BARDEN:


7 Today’s date is October 9th, 2018.  This is


8 South Carolina Workers’ Compensation Commission file


9 number 1102937.  This is the case of the Claimant


10 Mr. Barry Adickes who is in the building today; he’s


11 not in the hearing room, but he is represented by


12 Attorney Bill Smith who is in fact here today.  The


13 employer is Philips Healthcare and its carrier


14 Fidelity and Guaranty, both of which are represented


15 by Attorney Brooke Payne.  The purpose of today’s


16 hearing is to determine issues pursuant to a remand


17 from the Court of Appeals to the Full Commission,


18 which in turn assigned this to me to be heard or to


19 be adjudicated according to the dictates of the --


20 or the edict from the Court of Appeals.  The date of


21 this accident was March 22nd, 2011.  


22 Are there any objections to APAs, jurisdiction,


23 venue, or any other items?  I don’t know that y’all


24 have APAs, per se, and y’all probably have not had


25 time to prepare your legal memorandum, or maybe you
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1 did.  


2 BY MR. SMITH:


3 No objection.  I’m assuming that everything


4 that was ---


5 BY COMMISSIONER BARDEN:


6 It’s in the file.


7 BY MR. SMITH:


8 --- before Commissioner McCaskill is before you


9 today. 


10 BY COMMISSIONER BARDEN:


11 Okay.  So, this was Commissioner McCaskill’s


12 claim.  I guess I remembered it from the Full


13 Commission.  I was thinking that somehow ---


14 BY MS. PAYNE:


15 You weren’t on the Full Commission either. 


16 That’s why it was able to come back to you.


17 BY COMMISSIONER BARDEN:


18 It must be another -- I’m sorry, let’s go off


19 the record.


20 (OFF THE RECORD)


21 BY COMMISSIONER BARDEN:


22 All right.  We are back on the record, and I


23 have not had any involvement with this case before. 


24 I’m advised that this was Commissioner McCaskill’s


25 case and then -- nor did I sit on the Full
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1 Commissioner panel, which I was mistaken about, so


2 thank you attorneys for correcting me on that. 


3 I understand there are no objections to APAs,


4 is that correct?  Ms. Payne, do you have any? 


5 BY MS. PAYNE:


6 We don’t have any.  We’re just --- 


7 BY COMMISSIONER BARDEN:


8 You’re relying ---


9 BY MS. PAYNE:


10 --- relying on the record as it is.


11 BY COMMISSIONER BARDEN:


12 And the Commission file is a part of the


13 record.  Mr. Smith, you don’t have any objections?  


14 BY MR. SMITH:


15 No.  We rely on the entire record.


16 BY COMMISSIONER BARDEN:


17 And both parties did submit addenda to their


18 Form 58s.  So -- go ahead.


19 BY MR. SMITH:


20 And I was just going to say, I just submitted


21 an addendum as to what I thought the amount of the


22 benefit owed was, not a legal memorandum, but I can


23 do that if you’d like at the conclusion of this. 


24 BY COMMISSIONER BARDEN:


25 Okay.  We’ll talk about that at the conclusion
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1 of the hearing.  All right.  Who would like to


2 begin?  It’s fine with me.


3 BY MR. SMITH:


4 It doesn’t matter.


5 BY COMMISSIONER BARDEN:


6 Would you like to?


7 BY MR. SMITH:


8 Sure.


9 BY COMMISSIONER BARDEN:


10 Certainly.


11 BY MR. SMITH:


12 I’d be happy to.  Commissioner, this was a --


13 Mr. Adickes suffered a very significant injury when


14 his car plunged off a mountain on the job in March


15 of 2011.  He had a traumatic brain injury, a neck


16 injury and bilateral shoulder injuries.  The case


17 was tried before Commissioner McCaskill, and


18 Commissioner McCaskill found that he had sustained a


19 significant wage loss and awarded the case under 42-


20 9-20. 


21 BY COMMISSIONER BARDEN:


22 Okay.


23 BY MR. SMITH:


24 The case was -- that was affirmed by the


25 appellate panel, and the case then went to the Court


-0636-







8


1 of Appeals on appeal.  There were several issues on


2 appeal at the Court of Appeals.  The Court of


3 Appeals affirmed that he was at maximum medical


4 improvement.  They affirmed the -- that he had


5 sustained significant wage loss, but they reversed


6 and remanded on the issue of the calculation of the


7 benefit.


8 BY COMMISSIONER BARDEN:


9 Such that on -- the 340 weeks is from the date


10 of the injury; is that how I understand the ruling?


11 BY MR. SMITH:


12 Yes, ma’am.


13 BY COMMISSIONER BARDEN:


14 And you -- and that -- so, essentially they do


15 get credit for temporary benefits.


16 BY MR. SMITH:


17 And what happened -- this is a little bit


18 unusual in that Mr. Adickes only received about


19 seven weeks and five days of temporary total


20 benefits ---


21 BY COMMISSIONER BARDEN:


22 Oh, okay.


23 BY MR. SMITH:


24 --- in essentially a two year -- two-and-a-half


25 year period.  He had returned to work with them. 
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1 That was a big dispute in the case, his trouble


2 working.  He ultimately was terminated and


3 Commissioner McCaskill and the appellate panel


4 awarded the 340 weeks beginning with the date of his


5 termination forward.  The Court of Appeals reversed


6 that ---  


7 BY COMMISSIONER BARDEN:


8 Oh, okay.


9 BY MR. SMITH:


10 --- finding that the 340 weeks would have to


11 commence as of ---


12 BY COMMISSIONER BARDEN:


13 The date of the injury.


14 BY MR. SMITH:


15 --- the date of the injury.  Which I disagree


16 with that, but ---


17 BY COMMISSIONER BARDEN:


18 Yeah, okay.


19 BY MR. SMITH:


20 --- that’s the law of this case.  We did not


21 take it onto the Supreme Court in this one.


22 BY COMMISSIONER BARDEN:


23 Okay.


24 BY MR. SMITH:


25 In any event, it was remanded to you for a
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1 determination of what the remaining wage loss


2 benefit is.  So, basically in the addendum to my


3 prehearing brief, what we set forth to you is that


4 147 weeks had elapsed between date of injury and


5 when the wage loss began.  So, essentially 147 weeks


6 comes off the 340 weeks.  The defendants, did as


7 they were supposed to do, and that is they began


8 making payments -- weekly payments of the award when


9 it was on appeal to the Court of Appeals.  So, they


10 began making payments on May 15, 2016.  So, in the


11 addendum, I calculated it for you through September


12 11, 2018.


13 BY COMMISSIONER BARDEN:


14 Okay.


15 BY MR. SMITH:


16 I’ve actually done it further than that for you


17 today.


18 BY COMMISSIONER BARDEN:


19 Okay.


20 BY MR. SMITH:


21 Assume -- if I can find my note on that. 


22 Assuming that they have paid, or will have paid


23 through the end of this week through October 11th,


24 they will have paid 125 weeks of benefits.  So, the


25 125 plus the 147 that came off the award because


-0639-







11


1 from date of injury to when it began, that means


2 that would leave 71 weeks of benefits to be paid. 


3 We are already past the 340 weeks, so those weeks


4 would be accrued.  There would be no computation of


5 those benefits because they would already be due. 


6 So, that would be an award of $50,049.32.  


7 He was paid temporary total, as I pointed out


8 to you earlier, from March 23, 2011, through May 5,


9 2011, and March 9, 2016, through March 22, 2016. 


10 That’s seven weeks and five days worth of benefits.  


11 BY COMMISSIONER BARDEN:


12 Okay.


13 BY MR. SMITH:


14 That would be a total of $5,347.94.  The court


15 remanded for a ruling under the plain language of


16 42-9-20, and the last sentence of 42-9-20 says, “in


17 case the partial disability begins after a period of


18 total disability, the latter period shall not be


19 deducted from a maximum period allowed in this


20 section for partial disability.”  So, my position


21 is, is that they do not get credit for the temporary


22 total disability that was paid during those first


23 one-hundred and whatever it was weeks, so that would


24 increase the amount of the award $5,347.94 and that


25 would mean that $55,397.26 would be owed to the
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1 claimant as of October 12th, again, assuming they


2 would have paid through October 11th.  So, that’s my


3 position on what’s owed.


4 I know that Ms. Payne has a different argument


5 on that.  I can either go ahead and make those


6 arguments or I can respond. 


7 BY COMMISSIONER BARDEN:


8 Whatever -- I’ll let you respond, and she can


9 respond to you as well ---


10 BY MR. SMITH:


11 Okay.


12 BY COMMISSIONER BARDEN:


13 --- to your response.


14 BY MR. SMITH:


15 Okay.


16 BY COMMISSIONER BARDEN:


17 So, I’m going to let y’all go back and forth


18 several times.  Okay?


19 BY MR. SMITH:


20 Okay.  So, do you want me to keep going or do


21 you ---


22 BY COMMISSIONER BARDEN:


23 It’s up to you, sir.


24 BY MR. SMITH:


25 It doesn’t matter.
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1 BY COMMISSIONER BARDEN:


2 If you would like to respond to her, you’re


3 welcome to.


4 BY MR. SMITH:


5 Okay, that’s fine.


6 BY COMMISSIONER BARDEN:


7 Okay.


8 BY MR. SMITH:


9 Well, the -- my arguments with this are that


10 the Order to the Court of Appeals did not reverse


11 the findings of when wage loss began.


12 BY COMMISSIONER BARDEN:


13 Right.


14 BY MR. SMITH:


15 They simply said it was limited by the 340


16 weeks from the date of injury.  That wasn’t


17 overturned; that’s the law of the case.  I think on


18 remand, respectfully, I don’t think you really have


19 a choice but to do simply that.  So, that’s the law


20 of the case.


21 And not only that, in the Court of Appeals


22 order, they essentially expressly found that -- they


23 said, “compensation under the Act is not awarded for


24 the physical injury as such but for disability


25 produced by such injury.  The disability is to be
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1 measured by the employee’s capacity or incapacity to


2 earn the wages which he was receiving at the time of


3 his injury.”  And then they go on to say, “the


4 record is clear, Adickes did not suffer a wage loss


5 until he was terminated from employer.”  So I think


6 they have explicitly affirmed that; they certainly


7 didn’t overturn it.  So, I think that ---


8 BY COMMISSIONER BARDEN:


9 So you believe it should be from the date of


10 the termination?


11 BY MR. SMITH:


12 Yes, ma’am.  And which is what Commissioner


13 McCaskill had found and which was not overturned by


14 the Court of Appeals.


15 BY COMMISSIONER BARDEN:


16 Okay.  And you know, I have read the case, but


17 do you have a copy that I could take with me today? 


18 BY MR. SMITH:


19 Yes, ma’am.


20 BY COMMISSIONER BARDEN:


21 If you do.


22 BY MR. SMITH:


23 Sure, I do.


24 BY COMMISSIONER BARDEN:


25 I don’t want to take your only copy.
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1 BY MR. SMITH:


2 No, I’ve got several.


3 BY COMMISSIONER BARDEN:


4 Okay.  And I can look it up too.  I just


5 thought if you had one handy ---


6 BY MR. SMITH:


7 I do, I just have to find it for you.  I


8 apologize.


9 BY COMMISSIONER BARDEN:


10 That’s not a problem.


11 BY MS. PAYNE:


12 I just don’t have a clean copy.


13 BY MR. SMITH:


14 Yeah.


15 BY MS. PAYNE:


16 I’ve got writing all over mine.


17 BY MR. SMITH:


18 I’ve got writing on mine too.


19 BY COMMISSIONER BARDEN:


20 I don’t care.  Thank you so much.  I want to


21 make sure you didn’t leave any valuable notes in


22 here that you might need.


23 BY MR. SMITH:


24 I don’t think I made any notes on that.


25 BY COMMISSIONER BARDEN:
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1 I don’t think -- there’s a little bit of 


2 highlighting, but that’s all right.  Okay.  All


3 right.


4 BY MR. SMITH:


5 All right.  


6 BY COMMISSIONER BARDEN:


7 Thank you.


8 BY MR. SMITH:


9 The -- in their pre-hearing brief, the defense


10 argues based on the Curiel case that you cannot


11 award wage loss benefits until maximum medical


12 improvement.  So, essentially what they’re trying to


13 do is limit the award on the front-end and then


14 limit the award on the back-end as well.  To me,


15 that’s kind of an nonsensical reading of the


16 statute, and it really amounts to the fact that


17 there will be no remedy at all, which would be a


18 violation of due process if that were the case.  But


19 beyond that, the -- if you look at 42-9-20, which I


20 handed you a minute ago.


21 BY COMMISSIONER BARDEN:


22 I have it.


23 BY MR. SMITH:


24 The words “temporary” or “permanent” do not


25 appear in this general disability statute.  Rather,


-0645-







17


1 it looks at disability, which is defined under 42-1-


2 120, and I’ll give you that as well.  Disability


3 under -- is defined as -- it means, “the incapacity


4 because of injury to earn the wages which the


5 employee was receiving at the time of the injury in


6 the same or any other employment.”  Again, there’s


7 no distinction in the statute between temporary and


8 permanent, only whether the definition of disability


9 is met.  The Commission found that it was, and the


10 Court affirmed that.  Going further back to Outlaw


11 versus Johnson Services, “loss of earning capacity


12 alone is the criterion for compensation and medical


13 opinion as to the extent of any physical disability,


14 has no probative value against actual earnings.” 


15 So, what you have to look at in a 42-9-20 case is


16 the definition of disability.  There’s no


17 distinction between whether that’s temporary;


18 there’s no distinction whether that’s permanent.  If


19 he meets the definition of disability, which the


20 Commission and Court expressly found that he did, he


21 is entitled to compensation.


22 Going further with this MMI argument, they


23 presume the date of MMI in this Order.  They argued


24 that he had actually not reached maximum medical


25 improvement with regard to his shoulder.  The Order
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1 finds that he reached maximum medical improvement.


2 BY COMMISSIONER BARDEN:


3 Uh-huh.


4 BY MR. SMITH:


5 There is no date of maximum medical improvement


6 in this Order.  Neither Commissioner McCaskill ---


7 BY COMMISSIONER BARDEN:


8 Not the Full Commission?


9 BY MR. SMITH:


10 --- or the appellate panel found a date of


11 maximum medical improvement, and the reason for that


12 is that MMI is irrelevant in a 42-9-20 case.  It’s


13 only relevant to the issue of medical care, whether


14 that medical care is wide open medical care or


15 whether it’s going to be limited in scope pursuant


16 to an Order, but there is no date in this Order


17 finding maximum medical improvement.  It just says


18 that he did find maximum medical improvement.


19 Now -- so for you to come back now on this


20 remand ---


21 BY COMMISSIONER BARDEN:


22 But how would I know what the date is if you’re


23 telling me that there’s ---


24 BY MR. SMITH:


25 Exactly.
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1 BY MS. PAYNE:


2 There’s ---


3 BY MR. SMITH:


4 Because ---


5 BY COMMISSIONER BARDEN:


6 I’m going to let -- Ms. Payne has an answer for


7 that.


8 BY MR. SMITH:


9 Because it’s irrelevant, okay.


10 BY COMMISSIONER BARDEN:


11 Yeah, but I’m just saying -- yeah.


12 BY MR. SMITH:


13 And not only that ---


14 BY COMMISSIONER BARDEN:


15 If I was going to calculate anything from an


16 MMI date, then I would have to know what the MMI


17 date was.


18 BY MR. SMITH:


19 Exactly.  And the -- in doing that, if you did


20 -- you would have to find a date of maximum medical


21 improvement, which would be beyond the scope of the


22 remand from the Court of Appeals.  The Court of


23 Appeals affirmed maximum medical improvement.  They


24 did not remand it to the Commission for a date of


25 maximum medical improvement.  And again, the reason
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1 for that is under 42-9-20, it’s irrelevant.  


2 The -- and another interesting -- but let me --


3 let’s -- taking that argument one step further. 


4 Let’s say that we decide we do have to go down that


5 rabbit hole, which I don’t think we can, but let’s


6 just decide -- let’s say that we do, and you have to


7 figure out a date of maximum medical improvement. 


8 They argued that maximum medical improvement in this


9 case had not been reached, but they conceded in


10 their brief that he had reached maximum medical


11 improvement with regard to the brain and with regard


12 to his neck.  They challenged maximum medical


13 improvement on ---


14 BY COMMISSIONER BARDEN:


15 On the shoulder.


16 BY MR. SMITH:


17 --- on the shoulder.  Okay.  If you look at the


18 single Commissioner’s Order in this case that was


19 affirmed by the appellate panel, findings of fact 44


20 through 48, and I’ll just read them to you real


21 quickly.


22 BY COMMISSIONER BARDEN:


23 Okay.


24 BY MR. SMITH:


25 “When we consider all of those opinions and the
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1 evidence as a whole, the claimant has suffered a


2 cognitive deficiency as a result of his work-related


3 accident on March 22, 2011.  The impact of that


4 deficiency is limited to his executive functioning. 


5 That being said, it’s that executive functioning


6 that is determinative of the claimant’s ability to


7 hold employment similar to his employment for


8 Philips Healthcare.  While the employer -- while the


9 claimant did continue to work for the employer for


10 2.5 years after the work-related accident, he no


11 longer works there, and the cogent question is now,


12 can he find like employment at a similar wage and if


13 not, is the inability to find such employment the


14 result of his diminished executive function.  It’s


15 reasonable to conclude that if the claimant could


16 find employment at a wage comparable to what he


17 earned for the employer, he would.  There is no


18 evidence in the record that the claimant would


19 choose to self-limit his earning potential.  We find


20 the claimant has suffered wage loss as a result of


21 the 3-22-11 work-related accident.  Based on the


22 evidence as a whole, the claimant is clearly not as


23 he was before the work injury.”  


24 Commissioner McCaskill and the appellate panel


25 found that the reason he has wage loss is because of
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1 his traumatic brain injury and his loss of cognitive


2 function as it relates to executive function.  They


3 conceded that he was at maximum medical improvement


4 with regard to his brain long before his shoulder. 


5 In fact, he was rated on November 1, 2012, for his


6 brain, APA page 96, that was Dr. Welshofer.  Dr.


7 Mandell concurred with that at his depo on page 42. 


8 So, even -- so I don’t even think you get to all


9 that, okay?  But if we’re going to go way down that


10 road, they conceded maximum medical improvement with


11 regard to his brain.  He reached maximum medical


12 improvement with regard to his brain in November


13 2012, so none of that would even matter.


14 So -- and this issue was raised before the


15 Court of Appeals, and they didn’t buy it.  They


16 didn’t remand on it.  They didn’t -- they didn’t do


17 anything with that.  So, I -- again, my real


18 argument in this case -- or, all these are real


19 arguments, but the -- I think, simply, the Court of


20 Appeals found -- they agreed with the fact that his


21 -- when his wage loss began.  They agreed with the


22 fact that he had substantial wage loss.  They simply


23 said, you can’t get it except from 340 weeks from


24 date of injury.  So, for that period of time that he


25 continued to work, as unfair as that is, he’s
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1 penalized, and he does not get that.  


2 So, the amount of benefits under the law that


3 Mr. Adickes is entitled to is the fifty ---


4 BY COMMISSIONER BARDEN:


5 Forty-nine dollars and thirty-two cents?


6 BY MR. SMITH:


7 $55,397.26.


8 BY COMMISSIONER BARDEN:


9 Could you say that figure again?  Fifty-five --


10 -


11 BY MR. SMITH:


12 Yes, ma’am. $55,397.26.


13 BY COMMISSIONER BARDEN:


14 Okay.  All right.  Okay.  And you’ll have a


15 chance to respond.


16 BY MR. SMITH:


17 Thank you.


18 BY COMMISSIONER BARDEN:


19 All right.  Ms. Payne?


20 BY MS. PAYNE:


21 I disagree, first of all, that the Court of


22 Appeals agreed with the date that they should


23 commence being the date that he was terminated.  The


24 remand sentence specifically says, “we reverse the


25 appellate panel’s award of 340 weeks compensation
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1 commencing January 17th, 2014, and remand for a new


2 calculation of benefits consistent with the plain


3 language of 42-9-20.”  If ---


4 BY COMMISSIONER BARDEN:


5 And January 17th, 2014, is ---


6 BY MS. PAYNE:


7 Was when he was terminated.


8 BY COMMISSIONER BARDEN:


9 Okay.


10 BY MS. PAYNE:


11 Due to a reduction in force.


12 BY COMMISSIONER BARDEN:


13 You’re saying they specifically rejected that?


14 BY MS. PAYNE:


15 That is -- I just read the sentence into the


16 record.


17 BY COMMISSIONER BARDEN:


18 Okay.


19 BY MS. PAYNE:


20 “Accordingly, we reverse the appellate panel’s


21 award of 340 weeks compensation commencing January


22 17th, 2014, and remand for a new calculation of


23 benefits consistent with the plain language of 42-9-


24 20.”  If they agreed with the benefits commencing


25 January 17th, and they knew that 340 weeks from the
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1 date of accident is “X” date, that would have been


2 an easy calculation for them to make, and it


3 wouldn’t have been remanded.  So, for that reason,


4 we argue that the benefits should be calculated from


5 the date of MMI through the date of 340 weeks from


6 the date of injury, and that’s because these are


7 permanent benefits.


8 BY COMMISSIONER BARDEN:


9 And what do you find to be the date of MMI?


10 BY MS. PAYNE:


11 The date of MMI is when he was found to be at


12 MMI for all of his injuries, which is January 14th,


13 2015.  That date comes from -- to back up, right


14 after we tried this case, Commissioner McCaskill had


15 a conference call with us and, you know, just said,


16 “I don’t -- guys, I don’t know if he’s at MMI.  Tell


17 me what your thoughts are.”  Blah, blah, blah, and


18 so it was argued that the questionnaire from his IME


19 physician, Dr. Barron, which was dated January 14th,


20 2015, shows that he’s at MMI for all of his


21 injuries, and Commissioner McCaskill specifically


22 put that in the award that, “the claimant contends


23 that the questionnaire from Dr. Barron provides a


24 determination of MMI.  I’ve reviewed the


25 questionnaire and must agree as to a determination
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1 of MMI.  Dr. Barron opines to a reasonable degree of


2 medical certainty that the claimant has sustained


3 permanent impairment of fifteen-percent to the right


4 shoulder, zero-percent to the left shoulder.  While


5 the ratings are necessary to determine disability to


6 the shoulders, if any of the language is also


7 determinative as to MMI.”  So that was ---


8 BY COMMISSIONER BARDEN:


9 So you believe that they did speak to that?


10 BY MS. PAYNE:


11 Yes. 


12 BY COMMISSIONER BARDEN:


13 Okay.


14 BY MS. PAYNE:


15 That’s how he found that the claimant was at


16 MMI ---


17 BY COMMISSIONER BARDEN:


18 And so, he ---


19 BY MS. PAYNE:


20 --- for all of his injuries.


21 BY COMMISSIONER BARDEN:


22 Okay.


23 BY MS. PAYNE:


24 So it’s -- he doesn’t say the date of the


25 questionnaire is “X,” but, I mean, that’s very
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1 clear.  And I agree that using the way that the


2 statute had been interpreted until we tried this


3 case, or brought it up to the Court of Appeals, the


4 date of MMI didn’t matter ---


5 BY COMMISSIONER BARDEN:


6 Okay.


7 BY MS. PAYNE:


8 --- because it was just a lump sum award of 340


9 weeks.


10 BY COMMISSIONER BARDEN:


11 Right.


12 BY MS. PAYNE:


13 It didn’t matter ---


14 BY COMMISSIONER BARDEN:


15 Right.


16 BY MS. PAYNE:


17 --- when MMI was.


18 BY COMMISSIONER BARDEN:


19 Right.


20 BY MS. PAYNE:


21 But having said that, this is a permanent


22 award, and I also agree that there’s no distinction


23 between temporary and permanent when it comes to the


24 disability statute.  I completely agree, but the


25 claimant wasn’t seeking any temporary wage loss
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1 benefits.  His 50 specifically says permanent --


2 it’s ripe for permanency determination.  He’s only


3 seeking a permanent award of wage loss benefits, and


4 for that reason, I mean, I -- it’s very well


5 established within South Carolina that comp benefits


6 run on a timeline.  That temporary total benefits


7 are available from the date of injury through the


8 date of MMI, and that’s -- post-MMI benefits are


9 awarded as perm-total or partial disability.  I


10 mean, that’s in almost every case if you search, you


11 know, determination of MMI as it relates to


12 permanent and temporary benefits, and I think that


13 the record is clear that that was the date that


14 Commissioner McCaskill used, and I think that the


15 Court of Appeals did overturn the date of


16 commencement.  I mean, that’s the last -- that’s in


17 the remand sentence, the last sentence of the Court


18 of Appeals order directives back down here.  And I


19 think, you know, like I said, they’re -- he wasn’t


20 seeking any temporary benefits -- temporary loss.  I


21 agree that that statute applies to both, but, you


22 know, any benefits prior to MMI would have been


23 temporary benefits, and he didn’t seek any temporary


24 benefits.  He just sought wage loss benefits,


25 permanent wage loss benefits.  
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1 And so, MMI date being January 14th, 2015.  To 


2 back up -- to correct one thing that Bill said, we


3 commenced benefits in -- on March 10th, 2016.  That


4 was the date that we filed the notice of appeal,


5 rather than May.  So as of today, when it comes to


6 the benefits commenced for purposes of this appeal,


7 we’ve paid 135 weeks. 


8 BY MS. PAYNE (addresses Mr. Smith): 


9 Here’s the payment ledger that I -- I sent it


10 over to you last night.  


11 BY MS. PAYNE:


12 So, those are the dates.  So, we’ve paid 135


13 weeks and if you calculate the date of MMI through


14 340 weeks from the date of accident -- so, 340 weeks


15 from the date of accident is September 24th, 2017. 


16 So, if you look -- if you calculate the amount of


17 weeks between MMI date, based on Commissioner


18 McCaskill’s determinations, through 340 weeks from


19 the date of accident that amounts to 141 weeks.  So


20 right now, we’ve paid 135.  


21 So, we argue that if -- well, first we would


22 like to argue that it -- since, you know, generally


23 that award is encompassed in a lump sum, but we just


24 paid it weekly in order to commence the appeal that


25 we should be able to commute the value of that,


-0658-







30


1 which amounts to 137.69 weeks, but if not, then


2 we’ll go with six weeks remaining, which amounts to


3 $4,229.52.


4 And onto Mr. -- onto Bill’s second argument


5 about the last sentence in the statute where it


6 says, “in case the partial disability begins after a


7 period of total disability, the latter period shall


8 not be deducted from a maximum period allowed in


9 this section.”  So what that is saying, which is


10 what happened here, partial disability commenced


11 after a period of total disability because we paid


12 him, like, six or seven weeks of total disability. 


13 So what it’s saying is, we can’t say “oh, well, we


14 already paid you seven weeks of total disability, so


15 now we’re only going to go out to 333 weeks from the


16 date of accident.”  We can’t deduct it on that end,


17 which we haven’t tried to do.  We’ve never argued


18 that.  So, we are looking at the full 340 weeks from


19 the date of accident.  We’re not deducted it based


20 on any TTD that’s owed, and I don’t even know how a


21 reading of that could stand for the proposition that


22 it should be added onto the award, but having said


23 that, we aren’t trying to deduct it.  We think that


24 it should go out to the full 340 weeks based on the


25 language of the statute.
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1 Let me see if I touched on everything that you


2 argued.  And ---   


3 BY COMMISSIONER BARDEN:


4 So, Mr. Smith’s total figure, he believes is


5 $55,397.26; is that correct, Mr. Smith?


6 BY MR. SMITH:


7 Yes, ma’am.


8 BY COMMISSIONER BARDEN:


9 I think that’s what you said, but I just want


10 to verify that, $55,397.26?


11 BY MR. SMITH:


12 Correct.


13 BY COMMISSIONER BARDEN:


14 And you believe that figure would be?


15 BY MS. PAYNE:


16 $4,229.52, which represents six more weeks of


17 wage loss benefits being owed.


18 BY COMMISSIONER BARDEN:


19 Okay.


20 BY MS. PAYNE:


21 And the argument about there being no remedy at


22 all if there’s a situation wherein -- we argued this


23 up at the Court of Appeals as well.  If there’s a


24 situation where a claimant reaches MMI, but beyond


25 the 340 weeks, there’s still the scheduled member --
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1 there’s still potential remedies of law for getting


2 compensated for permanent benefits.  I mean, he


3 would have been compensated for having three


4 compensable injuries and scheduled member benefits


5 under each.  It’s not preventing him from being able


6 to receive a permanent award; it’s just changing --


7 it would just be, you know, changing the vehicle for


8 it.  So, there is always a remedy.  This isn’t


9 preventing anyone from being able to obtain a


10 permanent award.  It would just change how they


11 would go about doing it.  


12 So that’s why we argue that the benefits should


13 be commenced, since he’s seeking permanent wage loss


14 benefits, the date of MMI and pursuant to the Court


15 of Appeals award, they should be limited to 340


16 weeks from the date of accident, which is September


17 24th, 2017.


18 BY COMMISSIONER BARDEN:


19 Okay.  


20 BY MR. SMITH:


21 Commissioner McCaskill agreed he was at maximum


22 medical improvement, but he did not find a date of


23 maximum medical improvement.  With regard to the


24 remedy itself, to -- if you take their argument to


25 its logical conclusion, it simply negates 42-9-20
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1 for someone who takes a long time to get to maximum


2 medical improvement.  It is a -- it essentially


3 makes the statute worthless and would be a violation


4 of due process.  


5 In this case, we sought wage loss benefits.  It


6 does not matter if those wage loss benefits are 


7 temporary or they’re permanent because the statute


8 does not speak to temporary or permanent.  It speaks


9 to what is the definition of disability as defined. 


10 Clearly, the evidence in this case showed that his


11 wage loss began with his termination; that was fully


12 explained by the medical doctors, by the vocational


13 expert, and we believe, fully affirmed by the Court


14 of Appeals.  They certainly found that the wage loss


15 existed.  They found -- they said in there that the


16 wage loss began with his date of termination and


17 they -- and again, I don’t think they remanded this


18 case for a different decision in terms of when the


19 wage loss began.  They simply said that you can’t


20 get wage loss beyond 340 weeks from date of injury,


21 and that’s what the calculation that was envisioned


22 by the Court of Appeals was remanded.  


23 To the argument that the Court of Appeals would


24 have simply gotten out their pen and paper and


25 figured out the award, that’s not what the Court of
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1 Appeals ever does.  They always -- they make their


2 decision.  They don’t come up with the dollar


3 amount. 


4 BY COMMISSIONER BARDEN:


5 Right.


6 BY MR. SMITH:


7 They remand that to the agency for that to


8 happen.  So, I certainly disagree with that.


9 BY COMMISSIONER BARDEN:


10 Okay.


11 BY MR. SMITH:


12 Oh, one other thing, with regard to when


13 benefits were started, this was emailed to me last


14 night.  I don’t know if it’s right or wrong; I do


15 know it differs with the Form 18.


16 BY COMMISSIONER BARDEN:


17 Okay.  Well, maybe that’s something that y’all


18 can square away or tie down after the -- after we


19 speak here today.


20 BY MR. SMITH:


21 Okay.


22 BY COMMISSIONER BARDEN:


23 Anything else, Ms. Payne, that you would like


24 to argue?  You don’t have to.  I’m just offering it


25 up to you.
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1 BY MS. PAYNE:


2 I guess I’m confused as to how that -- those


3 dates don’t add up because we had to commence the


4 date that we ---


5 BY COMMISSIONER BARDEN:


6 Well, go ahead if you’d ---


7 BY MS. PAYNE:


8 --- pursued the appeal.


9 BY COMMISSIONER BARDEN:


10 --- like to address that on the record.


11 BY MR. SMITH:


12 Well, I know the number that I’m using is based


13 on that Form 18 you sent me.  So -- and I had that


14 based on benefits commencing ---


15 BY MS. PAYNE:


16 You said May.


17 BY MR. SMITH:


18 Yeah, sorry.


19 BY COMMISSIONER BARDEN:


20 I think you said May 15th, 2016; is that right?


21 BY MS. PAYNE:


22 I just assumed that if we hadn’t commenced them


23 two months after we started the appeal process


24 through the Court of Appeals you probably would have


25 filed something requesting they be commenced
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1 pursuant to the statute.


2 BY MR. SMITH:


3 The only thing that I -- sorry, I didn’t know


4 that was going to be an issue.


5 BY COMMISSIONER BARDEN:


6 Take your time.


7 BY MR. SMITH:


8 I would have rechecked that.


9 BY COMMISSIONER BARDEN:


10 Take your time.


11 BY MR. SMITH:


12 I don’t know that I have the 18 with me.  We


13 can check it, Your Honor.


14 BY COMMISSIONER BARDEN:


15 Okay.


16 BY MR. SMITH:


17 I don’t -–-


18 BY COMMISSIONER BARDEN:


19 Okay.


20 BY MR. SMITH:


21 I don’t think I have that Form 18 with me, but


22 I think -- I’m almost positive I based that on what


23 the Form 18 said.


24 BY COMMISSIONER BARDEN:


25 Okay.  All right.  Anything else before we
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1 close?  All right.  That concludes this proceeding.


2 (THERE BEING NO FURTHER QUESTIONS, THIS HEARING WAS


3 CONCLUDED AT THE HOUR OF 12:12 P.M.)
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1      PURSUANT TO NOTICE OF HEARING, THE WITHIN HEARING


2 WAS TAKEN BY THE ABOVE-NAMED COURT REPORTER, A NOTARY


3 PUBLIC FOR THE STATE OF SOUTH CAROLINA, IN COLUMBIA,


4 SOUTH CAROLINA.


5 * * * * *    * * * * *     * * * * *


6 BY COMMISSIONER JAMES:


7 TODAY IS APRIL THE 19TH, 2019.  WE ARE HERE ON


8 THE MATTER OF BARRY ADICKES VERSUS PHILIPS


9 CORPORATION.  THIS IS SOUTH CAROLINA WORKERS’


10 COMPENSATION FILE NUMBER 1102937.  MR. SMITH IS


11 PRESENT WITH REGARDS TO THE CLAIMANT, AND MS. BROOKE


12 PAYNE IS PRESENT WITH REGARDS TO THE DEFENDANTS.


13 THERE IS LONG PROCEDURAL HISTORY WITH REGARDS


14 TO THIS FILE, WHICH WE ARE NOT DIRECTLY HERE ON


15 TODAY.  WE ARE HERE ON A FORM 50, WHICH I HAVE BEEN


16 ADVISED IN PRETRIAL.  I’LL LET BOTH PARTIES SPEAK TO


17 IT.  INVOLVES TWO ISSUES OF WHETHER THERE IS A


18 VIOLATION OF CURRENT ORDERS, AND I’M JUST GOING TO


19 LET BOTH PARTIES SPEAK TO THOSE AS TO -- MR. SMITH,


20 AS TO THE RELIEF YOU’RE REQUESTING AND WHAT YOU


21 BELIEVE THE VIOLATION IS, AND, MS. PAYNE, YOUR


22 POSITION WITH REGARDS TO WHY YOU BELIEVE THERE IS NO


23 VIOLATION OF THE ORDERS AS THEY STAND CURRENTLY.


24 SO, LET ME SAY THAT WE NEED TO ADDRESS THE APAs
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1 FIRST, AS WHETHER THERE’S ANY OBJECTION TO ANY OF


2 THE APAs, JURISDICTION, VENUE, OR ANY OTHER


3 OBJECTIONS ON BEHALF OF THE MOVING PARTY, THE


4 CLAIMANT.


5 BY MR. SMITH:


6 NONE FROM THE CLAIMANT, YOUR HONOR.


7 BY THE COMMISSIONER:


8 THE DEFENDANT.


9 BY MS. PAYNE:


10 THE ONLY OBJECTION WOULD BE THAT WE STILL


11 MAINTAIN OUR POSITION THAT THE -- WHETHER WE ARE IN


12 VIOLATION OF AN ORDER FOR SUSPENSION OF BENEFITS, WE


13 DON’T THINK THAT IT’S PROPER TO BE HEARD AT THIS


14 LEVEL.  WE STILL THINK THAT SINCE THAT IS PENDING


15 BEFORE THE COURT OF -- OR BEFORE THE FULL


16 COMMISSION, THAT IT’S AN ISSUE THAT SHOULD BE


17 DECIDED AFTER THE FULL COMMISSION AWARD.


18 BY THE COMMISSIONER:


19 OKAY.  AND SO, WITH REGARDS TO -- THERE ARE NO


20 OBJECTIONS WITH REGARDS TO THE STANDARD AS THE APAs? 


21 THERE’S THE LEGAL ARGUMENT AS TO ---


22 BY MS. PAYNE:


23 RIGHT.


24 BY THE COMMISSIONER:


25 --- AS TO WHETHER THERE’S A VIOLATION OR NOT A
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1 VIOLATION AND WHAT YOUR POSITION IS?  SO, I WILL GO


2 AHEAD.  THE APAs ARE ADMITTED INTO EVIDENCE, THEN. 


3 THAT IS CLAIMANT’S ONE THROUGH ONE TWENTY-SEVEN AND


4 DEFENDANTS’ ONE THROUGH SIX.


5 BY MR. SMITH:


6 THERE WAS A SUPPLEMENTAL APA SEVEN, YOUR HONOR. 


7 IT’S ACTUALLY CLAIMANT’S ONE THROUGH ONE FORTY-


8 THREE.


9 BY THE COMMISSIONER:


10 AND I SEE THAT.  THANK YOU FOR THAT CORRECTION. 


11 SO THOSE ARE ADMITTED INTO EVIDENCE.  ALL RIGHT. 


12 MR. SMITH?


13 BY MR. SMITH:


14 THANK YOU, YOUR HONOR.  WE’RE HERE OVER TWO


15 ISSUES TODAY INVOLVING PENALTIES AND FINES.  THE


16 FIRST ONE IS THAT DEFENDANTS HAVE BEEN UNDER ORDER


17 TO PROVIDE MEDICATIONS AS PRESCRIBED BY DR. MANDELL


18 SINCE THE SINGLE COMMISSIONER ORDER OF AUGUST 27,


19 2015.  THAT ORDER WAS APPEALED, BUT THOSE ISSUES


20 WERE NOT APPEALED, AND THAT IS THE LAW OF THE CASE. 


21 DURING THE SUMMER AND FALL OF 2018, THERE WERE


22 REPEATED ISSUES WITH AUTHORIZATION OF MEDICATIONS. 


23 IN PARTICULAR, WE ARE LOOKING AT THE PERIODS OF JULY


24 9, 2018, THROUGH JULY 12; AUGUST 31 THROUGH


25 SEPTEMBER 6; SEPTEMBER 17 THROUGH SEPTEMBER 25; AND
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1 OCTOBER 16 THROUGH NOVEMBER 12.  THAT IS A TOTAL OF


2 44 DAYS, AND WE ARE SEEKING PENALTIES UNDER SECTION


3 42-3-175(A)(1).  


4 SECONDLY, YOUR HONOR, THE DEFENDANTS HAVE BEEN


5 PAYING -- THIS CASE WENT TO THE COURT OF APPEALS AND


6 WAS REMANDED BACK TO THE WORKERS’ COMPENSATION


7 COMMISSION.  DEFENDANTS HAVE BEEN PAYING ON THE


8 AWARD DURING THE PENDENCY OF THE APPEAL.  TWICE THEY


9 SOUGHT ORDERS TO STOP PAYING, AND THOSE ORDERS WERE


10 DENIED.  BUT ON OR ABOUT JULY 5, 2019 (SIC), THEY


11 STOPPED PAYING THOSE WEEKLY BENEFITS WITHOUT AN


12 ORDER, AND WE BELIEVE THAT THEY ARE STILL UNDER


13 ORDER AND ARE SUBJECT TO PENALTY FOR THAT.  SO I’M


14 ASKING FOR AN ORDER REQUIRING THEM TO BRING MY


15 CLIENT CURRENT ON BENEFITS, AS WELL AS PENALTIES FOR


16 ILLEGAL TERMINATION OF THOSE BENEFITS.


17 THE -- AND I FORGOT TO MENTION THIS EARLIER,


18 YOUR HONOR, BUT UNDER SECTION 42-3-175, FINES AND


19 PENALTIES CAN BE ASSESSED BOTH FOR MEDICAL AND


20 COMPENSATION, AND THEY’RE IN VIOLATION OF ORDERS ON


21 BOTH.  I AM ALSO SEEKING OUR COST OF REQUESTING THIS


22 HEARING HERE TODAY.  THANK YOU.


23 BY THE COMMISSIONER:


24 MS. PAYNE?


25 BY MS. PAYNE:
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1 WITH REGARD TO THE FIRST ISSUE, THE


2 EMPLOYER/INSURER CONCEDE THAT THERE WERE DELAYS IN


3 AUTHORIZATIONS OF CERTAIN PRESCRIPTIONS DURING THE


4 PERIOD THAT MR. SMITH DETAILED, AND WE WERE IN


5 CONSTANT COMMUNICATION WITH HIS OFFICE TRYING TO


6 CURE THAT ISSUE THROUGHOUT THE ENTIRE PERIOD.  BUT


7 HAVING SAID THAT, WE ARGUE THAT -- THAT THERE WAS --


8 ANY SORT OF DELAY WAS NOT WILLFUL.  AND THE FULL


9 COMMISSION HAS DEFINED WILLFUL CONTEMPT OF AN ORDER


10 AS, WILLFUL CONTEMPT IS AN ACT WITH THE SPECIFIC


11 INTENT TO DO SOMETHING THE LAW FORBIDS OR WITH THE


12 SPECIFIC INTENT TO FAIL TO DO SOMETHING THAT THE LAW


13 REQUIRES, THAT IS TO SAY WITH A BAD PURPOSE EITHER


14 TO DISOBEY OR DISREGARD THE LAW.  WHILE THERE


15 DEFINITELY WERE DELAYS, THERE WAS ABSOLUTELY NO BAD


16 PURPOSE ON BEHALF OF MY CLIENTS TO DISREGARD THE


17 LAW.  


18 AND, SECONDLY, WITH REGARD TO THE SUSPENSION OF


19 BENEFITS, IT IS OUR CONTENTION THAT WE ARE NOT ON


20 ANY -- WE ARE NOT UNDER ANY ORDER TO CONTINUE TO PAY


21 WEEKLY WAGE LOSS BENEFITS.  IN FACT, THE ONLY ORDER


22 THAT WE ARE UNDER IS THE COURT OF APPEALS ORDER IN


23 THAT REGARD THAT SAYS THAT WE ARE UNDER NO


24 OBLIGATION TO PAY WEEKLY WAGE LOSS BENEFITS BEYOND


25 340 WEEKS FROM THE DATE OF ACCIDENT.  SO, WE CONTEND
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1 THAT WE HAVEN’T VIOLATED ANY ORDER, THAT WE


2 COMMENCED BENEFITS UNDER 42-17-60 TO BRING THE CASE


3 UP ON APPEAL, AND ONCE THAT -- AND ACCORDING TO THAT


4 STATUTE, THAT THOSE PAYMENTS CAN CEASE ONCE THE


5 QUESTION AT ISSUE HAS BEEN FULLY DETERMINED, WHICH


6 THE ISSUE OF WHETHER WAGE LOSS BENEFITS ARE LIMITED


7 TO 340 WEEKS FROM THE DATE OF ACCIDENT, WELL, IT HAS


8 BEEN FULLY DETERMINED.  THERE’S NO QUESTION THERE. 


9 SO FOR THAT REASON, WE SUSPENDED, AND WE DON’T THINK


10 THAT WE ARE IN VIOLATION OF ANY ORDER IN DOING SO.


11 BY THE COMMISSIONER:


12 I’M SORRY.  LET ME -- LET ME BACK UP AND MAKE


13 SURE I HEARD YOU CORRECTLY.  THE LAST PART WHERE YOU


14 WERE SAYING THE FULL DETERMINATION, IS IT YOUR


15 POSITION THAT THE ISSUE HAS BEEN FULLY DETERMINED OR


16 NOT FULLY DETERMINED?


17 BY MS. PAYNE:


18 IT HAS BEEN FULLY DETERMINED.  THE ISSUE OF


19 WHETHER THE EMPLOYER/INSURER -- OR WHETHER A


20 CLAIMANT IS ENTITLED TO WEEKLY WAGE LOSS BENEFITS


21 BEYOND THE 340TH WEEK FROM HIS DATE OF ACCIDENT HAS


22 BEEN FULLY DETERMINED BY THE COMMISSION, AND THE


23 CASES THAT EXAMINE 42-17-60 INDICATE THAT THERE’S NO


24 NEED FOR A FINAL ORDER FOR THE WHOLE CASE.  IT’S


25 JUST THE QUESTIONS OF LAW THAT GO UP ON APPEAL. 
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1 IT’S THOSE QUESTIONS OF LAW THAT GO UP ON APPEAL


2 THAT REQUIRE US TO COMMENCE WEEKLY BENEFITS DURING


3 THE APPEAL PROCESS.  SO ONCE THE PARTICULAR QUESTION


4 OF LAW UP ON APPEAL WITH REGARD TO WEEKLY BENEFITS


5 HAS BEEN FULLY DETERMINED, OUR OBLIGATION TO


6 CONTINUE MAKING THOSE WEEKLY PAYMENTS CEASES.


7 BY THE COMMISSIONER:


8 ANYTHING FURTHER FROM THE CLAIMANT?


9 BY MR. SMITH:


10 WE WOULD JUST BRIEFLY RESPOND, YOUR HONOR.  THE


11 -- IT’S OUR -- CERTAINLY OUR POSITION THAT THIS


12 ISSUE HAS NOT BEEN FULLY DETERMINED.  WE’RE PENDING


13 APPEAL RIGHT NOW.  THERE’S NO ORDER THAT ALLOWS THEM


14 TO STOP PAYMENT OF BENEFITS, EVEN THOUGH THEY TWICE


15 SOUGHT ORDERS TO STOP PAYMENT.  SO WE THINK THEY’RE


16 CLEARLY IN VIOLATION OF THE ORDER.


17 BY THE COMMISSIONER:


18 ALL RIGHT.  THAT CONCLUDES THIS MATTER.


19 (THERE BEING NO FURTHER QUESTIONS, THIS HEARING WAS


20 CONCLUDED AT THE HOUR OF 12:35 P.M.)


21


22


23


24


25  
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CERTIFICATE OF NOTARY PUBLIC
SOUTH CAROLINA WORKERS' COMPENSATION COMMISSION


COLUMBIA, SOUTH CAROLINA
WCC FILE NO. 1102937


EMPLOYEE/CLAIMANT:  BARRY ADICKES


EMPLOYER:  PHILIPS HEALTHCARE


CARRIER:  FIDELITY & GUARANTY INSURANCE COMPANY


I, TIMMI A. PARRISH, A NOTARY PUBLIC FOR THE STATE
OF SOUTH CAROLINA, DULY COMMISSIONED AND QUALIFIED AS
SUCH, DO HEREBY CERTIFY THAT THE FOREGOING 9 PAGES
REPRESENTS A TRUE AND ACCURATE TRANSCRIPT OF THE
FOREGOING HEARING OF BARRY ADICKES, TAKEN ON THE 19TH DAY
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THAT THE WITNESS WAS DULY PLACED UNDER OATH AND
ADMONISHED TO SPEAK THE WHOLE TRUTH.  THAT THE ORAL
HEARING WAS DULY TAKEN AND TRANSCRIBED AS TO THE
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OBJECTIONS, IF ANY, INVOLVED IN THIS CASE ARE DULY 
ATTACHED OR INCLUDED HEREIN.


IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I HAVE SET MY HAND AND OFFICIAL
SEAL THIS 27TH DAY OF JULY, 2019.


                                
TIMMI A. PARRISH
NOTARY PUBLIC FOR SOUTH CAROLINA
MY COMMISSION EXPIRES: 5/29/2028


* THIS TRANSCRIPT MAY CONTAIN QUOTED MATERIAL.  SUCH
MATERIAL IS REPRODUCED AS READ OR QUOTED BY THE
SPEAKER.
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Reporter and Notary Public in and for the State of


South Carolina.
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ADICKES V. PHILLIPS HEALTHCARE, ET AL. 3


CALL TO ORDER:


COURT REPORTER:  Today is September 16th, 2019. 


This is South Carolina Workers' Compensation


Case Number 1102937.  This is the case of Barry


Adickes versus Phillips Healthcare and Fidelity


& Guaranty Insurance.  The Appellant is the


Defendant, represented by Brooke Payne.  The


Respondent is represented by William L. Smith. 


Each side is allowed 10 minutes for oral


argument and the Appellant two minutes in


reply.  You are requested to argue the grounds


of exception and stay within the record.


COMMISSIONER TAYLOR:  Ms. Payne.


DEFENDANT'S/APPELLANT'S POSITION:


MS. PAYNE:  Good afternoon, Commissioners.  My name


is Brooke Payne and I'm here on behalf of the


Defendant's, Phillips Electronics.  By way of


brief background, this case was heard before


the Commission years ago.  Then it went up to


the Court of Appeals on the issue of whether


the Claimant was entitled to a permanent wage


loss award and if so, what that award was.  And


the Court of Appeals issued an opinion in


January of 2018, wherein they held that Mr.


Adickes was entitled to a wage loss award,
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ADICKES V. PHILLIPS HEALTHCARE, ET AL. 4


however, based on the language of the Statute


that ward -- that award was not to exceed 340


weeks past his date of accident until it was


remanded back to the Commission for a


determination of when the wage loss award would


commence.  So, it was sent back down, came back


to the Appellant Division and was remanded to


Commissioner Barden and then there were some


more confusion about what single Commissioner


should rule on it.  But it finally got back an


award –  Barden issued an award and after that


award it'd been, I think a hundred fifty


something weeks of permanent benefits that we


have paid.  And we were -- our argument is that


we are only entitled -- or that he is only


entitled to a wage loss award of a hundred and


forty one weeks of benefits.  So, we went ahead


and suspended his benefits while awaiting the


final award in the case.  The reason for doing


that was because we commenced his benefits


while taking the award up on appeals.  So we


commenced it -- we commenced them pursuant to


42-17-60, the Non-Supersede of Statute.  And


since the award on appeal at that time was


awarding him weekly PPD benefits throughout or


CREEL COURT REPORTING, INC.
1230 Richland Street / Columbia, SC 29201


(803) 252-3445 / (800) 822-0896
-0782-







1


2


3


4


5


6


7


8


9


10


11


12


13


14


15


16


17


18


19


20


21


22


23


24


25


ADICKES V. PHILLIPS HEALTHCARE, ET AL. 5


through some time in 2020.  So, since we were


under an award that awarded weekly benefits, we


had to commence them to take it up on appeal,


which we did.  And then the Court of Appeals


issued their decision and they found explicitly


that -- they stated explicitly, that wage loss


awards were not to exceed 340 weeks from the


date of acc -- from the date of accident.  So,


that date in our -- in this case that date was


in Jan- -- I'm sorry, September 24th, 2017. 


Which was actually four months before the Court


of Appeals issued their award.  So, at the time


of their award they -- they explicitly said


that we were not obligated to continue paying


weekly benefits to the Claimant because the 340


week date had already passed.  So, it was


remanded for the purpose of figuring out when


the wage loss award would commence.  So,


Commissioner James held that we illegally


stopped payment of weekly benefits because


there was no order allowing us to do so, but


it's our contention that there was no order, it


was the Court of Appeals decision.  We did not


terminate the benefits following the Court of


Appeals decision because we were under the
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ADICKES V. PHILLIPS HEALTHCARE, ET AL. 6


impression that it was going to come right back


down to the Appellant Division, pursuant to the


directives, and that a calculation would be


made and that they -- we would have an award in


a short period of time because those were the


directives.  We did not foresee that it would


take -- I think it's been over a year since it


was remanded back down.  So, we just continued


to pay knowing that we were going to offset the


final award in the case, not because we were


under any obligation to do so.  And, in the --


the only issue on remand was when the award was


to commence and, so that in itself, that period


comes before the date of the Full Commission


opinion, because that's when we commence


benefits.  So, we're looking at -- you know


Bill argues that -- that it should commence as


of the date that he was terminated from his


job.  And I argue that permanent benefits


commence at the date of MMI.  So that's what


was before Commissioner Barden.  So the -- the


issue, you know, whether we have violated the


statute by stopping benefits was analyzed


throughly in the case.  The Hermitage case,


which discussed the benefits that are to be


CREEL COURT REPORTING, INC.
1230 Richland Street / Columbia, SC 29201


(803) 252-3445 / (800) 822-0896
-0784-







1


2


3


4


5


6


7


8


9


10


11


12


13


14


15


16


17


18


19


20


21


22


23


24


25


ADICKES V. PHILLIPS HEALTHCARE, ET AL. 7


paid by employer while the case is on appeal,


and that case contemplated, you know, well,


employers don't want to pay the whole award


because what if that award is overturned, then


they don't have an ability to recoup this


benefit.  At the same time Claimants deserve to


have some financial assistance during the


appeal.  So that's it, the case verse Hermitage


case.  The holding is that -- that the most


reasonable resolution of those two issues is to


only make the employer responsible for paying


the benefits that accrue from the date of the


Full Commission decision through the appeal. 


So, that's why we commence benefits at that


time.  So, right now, the only benefits period


that's left to be determined has occurred


before the Full Commission decision because


that's when we commence.  So it's -- it's, you


know, it's a determination of when they -- they


commence.  Regardless, we continued to pay. 


And, we paid for 70 weeks after the Court of


Appeals decision.  And, during -- during that


time, you know, we -- we weren't sure how the


Court would view us just stopping benefits,


even though we think we had the right to do so,
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so we filed a Motion seeking to suspend with


all of the Courts once the case headed.  So, we


-- we -- while the case was waiting to be sent


back down to the Commission, we filed a Motion


with the Court of Appeals and they said we've


already issued a remittitur, so not in our


jurisdiction.  So once it was before the Full


Commission we were told it's going -- it's on


remand to another Commissioner, we aren't gonna


rule on it.  It was before Commissioner Barden


and she, you know, checked the box on the


Motion form denying it just because there was


a hearing set before her.  So, none of the


Commissioners or the Court of Appeals, nobody


ruled substantivally on the merits of the


Motion.  But, having said that, we found


ourselves in the position that the case, the


Hermitage case contemplated, where we were


continuing to pay benefits knowing that -- that


we, based on the law, that we had paid more


than we would be -- that the final award would


be.  So, that's why we eventually suspended


benefits in February of 2019.  And there -- I


mean, there's no statute saying that we're


precluded from continuing voluntary payment of


CREEL COURT REPORTING, INC.
1230 Richland Street / Columbia, SC 29201


(803) 252-3445 / (800) 822-0896
-0786-







1


2


3


4


5


6


7


8


9


10


11


12


13


14


15


16


17


18


19


20


21


22


23


24


25


ADICKES V. PHILLIPS HEALTHCARE, ET AL. 9


weekly benefits knowing that it's gonna offset


a final award.  There's certainly no statute


saying that if we do so we get penalized by


having to then continue to pay until a Court of


Appeals award.  So, it's our contention that


there is an award saying that we can suspend. 


It was after the Court of Appeals decision.  We


-- we fulfilled all the obligations that we had


to fulfill and were to take it up on appeal


under 42-17-60.  We paid all the benefits that


had accrued beyond the Full Commission


decision, as well as many, many more.  So,


we're no longer obligated under that and based


on the Court of Appeals decision, that --


that's the law of the case, that we, that Mr.


Adickes is not entitled to any benefits, weekly


benefits, beyond September 24th, 2017.  So


since there aren't ongoing weekly benefits at


issue, we are no longer under an obligation to


continue paying under 42-17-60.  As evidence of


that, this case is now back in the Court of


Appeals 'cause it came back down.  Barden


issued a ruling, Full Commission affirmed,


backed-up in the Court of Appeals.  We've


already -- we filed our initial briefing.  I'm
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not sure when Bill's is due, but we are


commencing benefits this time around because we


aren't under a running award on weekly


benefits.  Not that any Motion to compel found


either.  So, with regard to that issue I think


that the procedure -- the posture where our


case is right now in the Court of Appeals and


the fact that we aren't in an obligation to


continue paying weekly benefits serves as proof


that we did not illegally terminate under


42-17-60.  So, that's the first issue.  I'll


hit the second issue.  Unless you guys have any


questions on the first issue?


COMMISSION TAYLOR:  No questions.


CLAIMANT'S/RESPONDENT'S POSITION:


MR. SMITH:  May it please the Commission.  I


represent Barry Adickes in this claim that has


a tortured procedural history -- history,


excuse me, I can't speak.  If I may approach,


I have some handouts for you.  Thank you.  As


Ms. Payne told you, this case was tried a long


time ago, 2015 before Commissioner McCaskill. 


It was affirmed by the Appellant Panel.  It


went to the Court of Appeals.  The Court of


Appeals reversed in part -- excuse me, affirmed
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in part, reversed in part, and remanded.  The


only issue on the remand was that they said the


award was limited to 340 weeks from date of


injury.  I'm not gonna get into all that, but


there was no issue as to when the award


started.  However, they appealed that.  During


the time that they appealed the Court of


Appeals, under 42-17-60, they started making


payment.  The Court of Appeals issued their


decision and they -- and they filed a Motion


before the Court of Appeals, which is the


second handout that you have there.  The Court


of Appeals ruled that this was a matter before


the Workers' Compensation Commission.  They


issued an Order that did not allow them to stop


making payments.  That Order was issued on May


11, 2018.  Thereafter, the Defendants filed


another Motion to be allowed to stop paying


compensation, that's the third handout in your


package, and that's the Order Commissioner


Barden issued on October, 2018 that did not


allow them to stop payment of weekly


compensation.  We then tried the case before


Commissioner Barden on the remand and


Commissioner Barden issued an Order finding
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that they had to make a lot more payments than


Ms. Payne indicates to you that they should


have to make.  She -- she ruled that they had


to have made 200 more weeks of payments.  Now,


they got credit for some of that, for the 70


weeks they'd paid, but there was still a


hundred and thirty weeks remaining to be paid. 


I have -- I -- the third -- excuse me, the


fourth handout is Commissioner Barden's Order. 


If you look at page 10 of that Order, it says


Defendants began making weekly payment of the


award under 42-17-60 when the Order of


Commission's Appellant Panel was filed and


continued to make those payments.  She never


issued an order allowing them to stop making


payments.  In fact, she ordered them to make


additional payments.  It should've been paid in


a lump sum because those -- all of those weeks


had already accrued.  However, they didn't stop


there.  They appealed it again to the Appellant


Panel and the Appellant Panel affirmed that


decision.  They then filed a new appeal to the


Court of Appeals and they still haven't started


making payments.  This came, so we filed our


petition, actually that happened after -- the
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and -- that new appeal to the Court of Appeals


was after that Order from Commissioner James. 


We tried the case before Commissioner James and


she said, look, you've tried this twice


already.  Nobody -- or three times already --


nobody has given you permission to stop making


payments.  So she ordered them to recommence


the payment and ordered them to pay a ten


percent penalty.  Now, the first handout I gave


you was 42-17-60, and that clearly says, in


case of appeal from decision of the Commission


on questions of law, the appeal does not


operate as a supersedeas and then it goes on to


say until the questions -- and they're required


to continue to make weekly payment of


compensation until the questions at issue have


been fully determined in accordance with


provisions of this title.  Well, they would've


been fully determined at the time of


Commissioner Barden's Order had there not been


a further appeal.  But, this order appealed to


the Court of Appeals now, it still hasn't been


fully determined and they have stopped making


payments to Mr. Adickes.  They -- they twice,


three times asked for permission.  They've
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never been given permission.  They're under


order to make those payments.  Commissioner


James, in my opinion, did them a favor by


instituting a ten percent penalty.  They're


under order, under 42-3-175, frankly they


should have been fined 500 dollars per day for


the 77 days that have  eclipsed between the


time that they stopped payment and the time of


the hearing.  Let's take it a little bit


further.  The next argument that's gonna come


up ---


COMMISSION BECK:  She did fine them under 175.


MR. SMITH:  On the medical issue, not on the


temporary total --


COMMISSION BECK:  Right.


MR. SMITH: --- excuse me, on the weekly payment


issue.


COMMISSION BECK:  Right.  Okay.


MR. SMITH:  So, around the same -- well, before they


stopped payment of benefits, all of the sudden


Mr. Adickes can't get his medications.  They've


been under order since 2015 to provide the


medications that Dr. Mandell prescribes for


him.  He can't get his medications.  We put in


the order, we put in the deposition of Dr.
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Mandell, we put in the record to Dr. Mandell,


we put in the pharmacy records that show


they're not paying 'em, we put in the letter


from the carrier denying em' and we put in all


the emails between my office and Ms. Payne's


office.  There is a period of -- it was, it


was, four different times that they weren't


paying em'.  What Commissioner James did was


she fined them 200 dollars a day for the last


period, which was 27 days.  There were a lot


more days than that, and again, they should've


been paying -- been fined 500 dollars a day. 


They got off easy on this thing.  I -- you


know, it's crazy.  So, they argue that there's


no willful conduct.  Well, if going through all


of that is not willful conduct, I don't know


what is.  We put in all that evidence.  We


showed the prima facie case.  When that happens


the burden shifts to them to show that there's


some impossibility for them to comply with the


order.  They didn't show anything.  They showed


absolutely nothing other than said, oops, we


messed up.  That doesn't cut it.  What they


have done here is they have shown disdain for


my client's medical condition and they have
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shown disdain for the orders of the Workers'


Compensation Commission.  And I would ask you


to affirm this decision, give this man his


weekly payments, or increase the fines.  Thank


you.


COMMISSION TAYLOR:  Ms. Payne gets 3 minutes on the


rebuttal.


REPLY:


MS. PAYNE:  In response to the argument that we are


under an order to make these payments, my


response is what order?  There is no order


right now that says that we're entitled -- that


he is entitled to ongoing weekly benefits.  The


Court of Appeals decision specifically said


he's not entitled to weekly benefits beyond


September 24th, 2017.  Even Commissioner Barden


extended that period, which is why it's back in


the Court of Appeals, one of the reasons, to 8


weeks beyond September 24th, 2017.  We've paid


all of those benefits.  We continuing paying


for 70 weeks.  So there -- there is no order


that says that he is entitled to ongoing


benefits.


COMMISSION TAYLOR:  Ms. Payne, but I think the


wording you used, and I just want to double
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check to make sure you meant to use it, but the


-- it's my understanding that the Court of


Appeals Order references the permanent


benefits, the permanent wage loss weekly


benefits.  It's not necessarily referring to


temporary benefits, which are separate in our


system.


MS. PAYNE:  Correct, but he only sought permanent


wage loss benefits, which is why whether he was


at MMI was an issue for all of his injuries


from the first hearing.  So there's -- there's


never been anything other than permanent wage


loss benefits sought until the remand.


COMMISSION TAYLOR:  So, it's your position that the


benefits that you commence during the pendency


of that first appeal, those were actually


permanent benefits that you're ---


MS. PAYNE:  Those were -- that's what -- that's what


the award was.  McCaskill had ordered permanent


wage loss benefits and since that was the award


that -- that we're taking up on appeal, that's


what we commence,  was PPD.  Yes.  And in


response to the second issue of the


authorization of meds, I -- Bill's office and


I -- we communicated very, very often during
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those periods of delays because I was having


issues that were adjuster changes and all kinds


of -- and I've never -- I've always


acknowledged that, yes, those -- those were


delays that were one hundred percent my


client's fault.  The question is for these


penalties to be and fines to be owed, there has


to show willful contempt and ---


COMMISSION BECK:  How many times do they have to


mess it up before it becomes willful?


MS. PAYNE:  Mess it up.  I don't think that was ever


messed up.


COMMISSION BECK:  You said there were numerous times


---


MS. PAYNE:  There were times when he was -- had gone


to the pharmacy and for whatever reason ---


COMMISSION BECK:  It wouldn't -- it wouldn't had


been his fault.


MS. PAYNE:  I -- I'm not saying it was his fault.


COMMISSION BECK:  How many times does your client ---


MS. PAYNE:  To show that -- well, I mean -- the


definition of willful Contempt, which this


Commissioner James has ruled on in the past and


the Full Commission upheld was, willful


Contempt is an act with the specific intent to
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do something the law forbids or to fail do


something that the law requires to be done. 


That's to say with bad purpose, either to


disobey or disregard the law.  I mean, there's


no proof that my clients did anything because


they were -- we never said we're no longer


authorizing this medication ---


COMMISSION BECK:  No, they just failed to do it.


MS. PAYNE:  Well, correct.  They -- they -- they --


because for whatever reasons it was dropping


through the cracks with, you know, changes in


adjusters and -- and things like that.  But


there's no proof that -- that it was done with


a bad purpose or to harm Mr. Adickes personally


by any means.  So, for that reason we request


that your Honors overturn that decision as


well.


COMMISSION TAYLOR:  Thank you.


(There being nothing further, the full commission


hearing concluded at 3:17 p.m.)
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2003 WL 22977624 (S.C. Work.Comp.Comm.)


Workers' Compensation Commission


State of South Carolina


JOHN BASS, JR., EMPLOYEE, CLAIMANT
v.


KENCO LOGISTICS SERVICES, EMPLOYER
AND


GALLAGHER BASSETT SERVICES, CARRIER, DEFENDANTS


W.C.C. File No.: 0100748
March 20, 2003


Hearing:
*1  Held in Columbia, South Carolina, on January 22, 2003.


Purpose of Hearing:
To determine issues raised by the Claimant's Form 50 and the Defendants' Form 51: compensability of claim, medical treatment,
permanent partial disability (wage loss), average weekly wage, and compensation rate.


Decision and Order By:
The Honorable George N. Funderburk, Commissioner.


Appearances:
Claimant represented by Hyman Rubin, Jr. of McDonald, McKenzie, Rubin, Miller and Lybrand, L.L.P., Post Office Box 58,
Columbia, SC 29202.
Defendants represented by Darryl D. Smalls of Nelson, Mullins, Riley & Scarborough, LLP, P.O. Box 11070, Columbia, SC
29211.


STATEMENT OF THE CASE


The Claimant, John Bass, Jr., filed a Form 50 dated July 15, 2002, seeking an award for permanent partial general disability
(wage loss) as a result of injuries to his left arm and shoulder, left leg, and mental and emotional injuries; past and future medical
examination and treatment for psychological and psychiatric conditions induced by the accident; a determination of average
weekly wage and compensation rate; and other appropriate benefits under the Act.


Per their Form 51 dated July 23, 2002, the Defendants denied that the Claimant sustained compensable injuries; denied that the
Employer and Employee were subject to the Workers' Compensation Act at the time in question; denied that the relationship
of Employer and Employee existed at the time in question; and otherwise denied all aspects of the claim stating that the
claim was “under investigation” and setting up “All affirmative and specific defenses ... including but not limited to Section
42-9-60, Section 42-15-20, Section 42-15-40, Section 42-17-90; and fraud in the application for employment; fraud in the
inducement to sign Form 15; fraud in the initiation for the claim for benefits; pre-existing disability to alleged injured members;
election of remedies; intervening trauma; no compensable injury by accident under Section 42-1-160; degree of disability, if
any, attributable to this injury speculative; claimant's problems personal in nature and not work related.”
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A hearing was held on January 22, 2003, in Columbia, South Carolina, at which time testimony was given by the Claimant and
by two employees of the Employer. The parties' APA submissions were accepted without objection.
 


STIPULATIONS


At the commencement of the hearing it was stipulated as follows:
1. The purpose of the hearing was to determine the issues raised by the Claimant's Form 50 and the Defendants' Form 51 as
set out above.


2. The dates of accident were January 24, 2001, and March 2, 2001.


3. Notice of the hearing was timely and properly served upon all parties.


4. Venue was proper in Richland County pursuant to S.C. Code Ann. § 42-17-20.


*2  5. The Claimant had an average weekly wage of $1,211.52 and a compensation rate of $532.77 (2001 maximum).


6. The Commission file was made part of the record.


 
MEDICAL EVIDENCE AND OTHER APA SUBMISSIONS


The following documents were submitted into evidence without objection pursuant to the Administrative Procedures Act:
 


CLAIMANT


Exhibit No.
 


Description
 


Page Numbers
 


APA No. 1
 


Records from William H. Kirkley, M.D. and David B.
Fulton, M.D.
 


1-16
 


February 19, 2001 - July 17, 2001
 


 
APA No. 2
 


Records from Deborah Stuck, M.D.
 


17-29
 


July 16, 2001 - April 8, 2002
 


 
APA No. 3
 


Records from Matthew E. Midcap, M.D. and Clay
Drummond, M.D.
 


30-48
 


May 3, 2001 - June 26, 2001
 


 
APA No. 4
 


Records from A. Sale Estefano, M.D.
 


49-51
 


March 18, 2002 - November 18, 2002
 


 
APA No. 5
 


Records from Patricia Feigley, MSW, LISW, LMFT
 


52-79
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February 12, 2002 - April 29, 2002
 


 
APA No. 6
 


Records from J. Adger Brown, Jr., M.A. CDMS
 


80-85
 


November 12, 2002 - November 19, 2002
 


DEFENDANTS


APA No. 1
 


Report from Deborah Stuck, M.D.
 


1
 


February 2, 2002
 


 
APA No. 2
 


Records from Matthew Midcap, M.D.
 


2-27
 


May 3, 2001 - July 10, 2001
 


 
APA No. 3
 


Records from The Moore Orthopaedic Clinic, P.A.
 


28-41
 


February 19, 2001 - July 17, 2001
 


 
APA No. 4
 


Record from Concentra
 


42-59
 


June 14, 2001 - August 7, 2001
 


 
APA No. 5
 


Records from Doctor's Care
 


60-67
 


January 30, 2001 - February 7, 2001
 


 
APA No. 6
 


SC Employment Security Commission File
 


68-96
 


FINDINGS OF FACT


Based upon the testimony adduced at the hearing, the documentary evidence submitted by the parties pursuant to the
Administrative Procedures Act, and the Commission's entire file relative to this claim, I make the following findings of fact:


1. The Claimant, John Bass, Jr., is 37 years old, married, and has three children, aged 6, 9, and 13. He completed the ninth grade
(went to the tenth grade) and received a GED. He worked as a truck driver “pretty much throughout [his] whole life,” driving
for Sonic, Carolina Freight Company, Atlantic Motor Lines, Air Products and Chemical, National Welders, USF Dugan, and
Kenco (the Employer). He commenced his employment with the Employer in July of 2000 and his job responsibilities consisted
of driving a truck, delivering appliances, and installing appliances, some weighing as much as 800 pounds. Following a short
period of restricted duty with the Employer, the Claimant was taken out of work and has remained unemployed through the
date of the hearing.


2. On January 24, 2001, the Claimant sustained an accident on the job when he and a co-employee were attempting to move
an 800 pound refrigerator down the ramp of a tractor-trailer. As the co-employee's grip gave way and the refrigerator started
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slipping away, the Claimant yanked on it and thereby sustained an injury to his left shoulder. On March 2, 2001, the Claimant
was loading a “very heavy” double oven when he re-injured his left shoulder. When he woke up the next morning his pain was
substantially exacerbated to the point that he had to “literally lift [his] arm in order to move it because of the pain.” The left
shoulder pain thereafter radiated into the left arm, elbow, fingers, and neck. The Claimant also sustained injury to his left leg.


*3  3. The Claimant was initially sent by the Employer to Doctor's Care, where he was given a cortisone shot and prescribed
pain medication. He was thereafter referred to The Moore Orthopaedic Clinic, P.A., where he was first treated by Dr. William H.
Kirkley and diagnosed with a strained left shoulder and, following an MRI, left shoulder impingement with left upper extremity
pain and tingling in the left thumb. He was given additional injections, medications, therapy, and light duty restrictions.


4. The Claimant's care was thereafter taken over by Dr. David B. Fulton of The Moore Orthopaedic Clinic, P.A., who diagnosed
left shoulder pain with radiation into the left arm and the neck. Dr. Fulton ordered a nerve conduction study, recommended
pain therapy, and put the Claimant on work restrictions of no overhead lifting with the left arm and no lifting greater than 10
pounds. Dr. Fulton determined that the Claimant's care thereafter should be with the Center for Pain Management of Palmetto
Health Alliance and concurred in their assessment that the Claimant sustained a 10% permanent impairment to the left upper
extremity which required modified permanent light duty status.


5. The Claimant underwent a pain management program for approximately six weeks at Palmetto Health Alliance, where he
was noted to be suffering from myofascial pain, shoulder pain, and ulnar neuropathy. His orthopaedic care at that facility was
in the hands of Dr. Matthew E. Midcap, who eventually released the Claimant to return to work on a permanent light duty status
(office work, but not truck driving). A functional capacity evaluation was completed by Ms. Leila Renfrow, who determined that
the Claimant's work capacity was at the light physical capacity level. Dr. Clay Drummond noted, inter alia, that an MRI revealed
“a small tear in the rotator cuff and that it gets inflamed.” He performed a psychological evaluation in which he concluded that
as a result of his injuries the Claimant was suffering from moderate depression and that his Multidimensional Pain Inventory
profile classification was “Dysfunctional.” He also concluded that the Claimant's chronic pain was interfering with his life
more than normal, that he was suffering from affective distress and feeling of diminished control over his life, and that he was
evidencing lower overall general activity including social activity, activities away from home, outdoor work, household chores,
and a lower repertoire of distracting responses to help him cope with the pain. His recommendation was a full pain management
program including treatment for depressive and anxiety symptoms and reduction of chronic stress through stress management
procedures. At the time of completion of the pain management Dr. Drummond noted that Mr. Bass rated his pain as “6 on a
scale of 0 to 10” and his depression as “severe.” On June 22, 2001, Dr. Midcap performed an ulnar nerve block, and on June
26, 2001, he gave the Claimant a return to work slip stipulating “permanent light duty status-office work-no truck driving.”


*4  6. The Claimant was referred by his primary care physician to Patricia Feigley, MSW, LIS, LMFT, who determined that the
Claimant was “experiencing symptom of depression and anxiety ... [which] developed as a result of being injured and unable
to work at his previous level.” She concluded that the Claimant would not be ready to return to work until his symptoms of
depression subsided. Because of his ongoing depression and anxiety and, in her estimation, his need for medication, Feigley
recommended that the Claimant see a psychiatrist.


7. On March 18, 2002, Dr. A. Sale Estefano, the psychiatrist to whom the Claimant was referred, initially diagnosed him with
post-traumatic syndrome disorder, panic disorder, and adjustment disorder with depressed mood and nightmares. Thereafter,
on April 23, 2002, Dr. Estefano opined that the Claimant had “developed severe depression and panic attacks” as a result of his
work-related injuries and that he would “not be able to return to work for an indefinite amount of time due to his mental and
physical condition.” In his note of November 18, 2002, Dr. Estefano recited that the Claimant had developed “severe anxiety,
severe depression, and excessive amount of pain in his shoulder due to his injury at work.” He further stated that the Claimant
had suffered “emotional and mental distress due to his injury at work, which has limited him severely in being able to support his
family.” His recommendation was that “Mr. Bass will need psychotherapy along with medication management for an indefinite
amount of time.” As to his prognosis, Dr. Estefano indicated that “as long as Mr. Bass suffers from his work-related injury, he
will continue to suffer mentally, emotionally, and financially.” The Claimant is still under Dr. Estefano's care.
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8. Dr. Deborah L. Stuck, the Claimant's primary care physician, noted that his physical injuries had caused him to be placed
on permanent restrictions, had “changed his work ability and cut his earnings by half” (the Claimant testified that his earnings
have been cut by two-thirds), and opined that “I certainly do believe these [stresses] had a tremendous impact on his life and
contributed to emotional distress.” On another occasion she opined that “I do sincerely believe that the anxiety and stress of his
permanent disability and treatment through Workers' Comp. has contributed to his emotional problems he's having now.” On
another occasion she noted his anxiety along with “[g]eneralized shaking.”


9. J. Adger Brown, Jr., MA, CDMS, performed a vocational evaluation based on a clinical interview with the Claimant, a review
of the medical records of the treating professionals, and a review of the records from Palmetto Health Alliance containing
various medical, psychological, and functional assessments. He noted that although Leila Renfrow stated the Claimant was
demonstrating the capacity to do work at light physical capacity level, her measured assessments “indicate that he is actually
in the full range of sedentary exertion, but with the additional ability to stand and walk without restriction, as is part of the
light requirement but without the lifting component of this classification.” Taking into account the Claimant's educational
background, his work history, his medical diagnoses, his ongoing accident-related psychological and psychiatric problems, and
his own observations, he concluded that “if Mr. Bass is capable of working at all, he can only be at the lowest level of stress and
job pressure” and that the job “will also have to be of such minimal physical demand as to not unduly exacerbate his physical
problems, which I understand are significantly triggering his psychological problems.” His bottom line assessment was that
the Claimant “could only handle sedentary, entry level, unskilled work of a routine and repetitive nature requiring little in the
way of interaction with the public and co-workers ... and little in the way of decision-making authority as well.” He opined that
although such jobs do exist, they exist in relatively small numbers in the local area and command salaries of no more than $5.15
an hour to perhaps $7.00 an hour. His final observation was that “[t]his wage loss, in and of itself, will be yet another blow to
this man's self-esteem. However, based on Dr. Estefano's letter I am really not able to offer a brighter prognosis.”


*5  10. Harriet Tokar, the manager of the Employer's Columbia Distribution Center, testified that from her own observation
the Claimant “was rather shaky” and that he was “taking a number of medications” when he was returned to light duty. She
acknowledged that she had never had any trouble with the Claimant as an employee, that he was an excellent employee both
as a truck driver and in his light duty position of dispatcher, that she would be happy to take him back if there were a position
available for him and in fact that he “would get first priority,” that there was nothing in his background that would keep her
from re-hiring him, that she did not think the Claimant committed a fraud in this case, (as alleged in the Form 51) and that she
believed the Claimant sustained a job-related injury.


11. John Lewis Little, the Employer's Human Resources and Safety Director, testified that with all he knew about the Claimant
he would put him back in the position that his restrictions would allow if he had a job for him and that he would even give him
a preference. He corroborated Harriet Tokar's assessment that the Claimant had been an excellent employee in both of the jobs
he had performed for the company, and that he did not think that diabetes in any form had anything to do with the Claimant's
getting injured on January 24, 2001, and re-injured on March 2, 2001. He acknowledged that he had never looked at what the
doctors had to say about the Claimant's condition (“I never read it, no”) and that he had never read or asked for any of the
medical records related to the cause of the Claimant's psychological and psychiatric problems. Neither he nor Harriet Tokar
was involved in the preparation of the Defendants' Form 51 and could not give any factual information to support any of the
numerous defenses it raised.


12. Prior to this accident the Claimant was always able to perform his jobs; was never dysfunctional in any job; was never
disabled because of any psychiatric, psychological, or sugar problems; had never been discharged from a job because of any
physical or emotional problems; and had experienced no difficulties in his normal functions of daily living. Because of the
accident and injuries the Claimant has since experienced changes in his daily life including difficulties in playing with his
children, playing sports, exercising, cutting firewood, body building, and in general doing anything strenuous with his left arm.
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13. Upon questioning by the Defendants' counsel, the Claimant acknowledged that he had denied a problem with diabetes on
the health questionnaire prior to his hiring, but he satisfactorily explained that this answer was given because other than one
recent episode resulting from his wife's health scare he had not been having any serious symptoms of diabetes since childhood,
that he was not insulin dependent, that he had discussed the question and his answer to it with the Employer's then manager
(Steve McIntire) and with the doctor who administered the physical, that he knew the required physical exam came up negative
for sugar problems, and that at no time during his employment was he driving the Employer's trucks while on insulin. I find as a
fact that the Claimant did not knowingly and willfully make a false representation as to his physical condition in this regard, that
in any event the Employer did not rely upon his representation (in light of the Claimant's discussion with manager McIntire),
and there was certainly no causal connection between the Claimant's answer and the injuries he sustained.


*6  14. The factual findings recited hereinabove are either uncontroverted in the record or supported by a preponderance of
the evidence and I therefore adopt them as the factual findings in this case.


15. After reviewing all medical evidence submitted by the parties; observing the Claimant and the other witnesses during the
course of the hearing; considering the two separate permanent impairments rated by two different doctors; and considering the
uncontradicted vocational conclusions of J. Adger Brown, Jr., I find that the Claimant a) has a 10% permanent impairment to
the left upper extremity with associated ulnar neuropathy, myofascial pain, shoulder pain, and tingling in the fingers; b) suffers
from post-traumatic syndrome disorder, panic disorder, and adjustment disorder with depressed mood, all of which were directly
induced by the injuries sustained in this accident and which require ongoing psychiatric treatment and medication control under
the care and direction of the Claimant's psychiatrist, Dr. A. Sale Estefano; c) is under severe permanent physical restrictions
and is currently under significant psychiatric restrictions; d) can never return to his former employment as a truck driver or
any other employment of the same general nature because of permanent physical limitations; e) has been relegated to work
activity in the sedentary, entry level unskilled work category of a nature which requires little in the way of interaction with
the public and co-workers and little in the way of decision-making authority in consequence of which the Claimant's earning
capacity is a maximum of $7.00 per hour; and f) has suffered wage loss from a pre-injury average weekly wage of $1,211.52 to
a post-injury level of $280.00 per week, which represents a weekly loss of income in the amount of $931.52. I further find that
a) the aforesaid physical, psychiatric, and psychological limitations set out hereinabove are consistent with a valid functional
capacity evaluation performed at Palmetto Health Alliance, evaluations of the numerous physicians and other professionals, and
the uncontroverted testimony adduced at the hearing; b) J. Adger Brown, Jr.'s vocational assessment is credible, accurate, and
uncontradicted; and c) the Claimant's physical limitations and his psychiatric and psychological complications are the direct
result of the injuries he sustained on the job.


16. Based upon these facts I find that the Claimant has a) reached maximum medical improvement as to his physical injuries;
b) has not reached maximum medical improvement with respect to his psychiatric and psychological complications; and c) is in
need of ongoing psychiatric and psychological treatment including prescriptions medications under the direction of Dr. Estefano.
 


CONCLUSIONS OF LAW


In view of the above findings of fact, I conclude as a matter of law:


1. The parties to this proceeding are subject to and bound by the provisions of the South Carolina Workers' Compensation Act.


*7  2. On January 24, 2001, and again on March 2, 2001, John Bass, Jr., an employee within the meaning of S.C. Code Ann.
§ 42-1-130, sustained accidental injuries to his shoulder, arm, hand, leg, neck, and face within the meaning of S.C. Code Ann.
§ 42-1-160 while performing duties arising out of and within the course and scope of his employment with Kenco Logistics
Services, an employer within the meaning of S.C. Code Ann. § 42-1-140.
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3. As a direct consequence of the physical injuries sustained on those dates the Claimant has suffered severe psychological and
psychiatric impairments which are ongoing in nature and which require continuing medical treatment and medications owed
by the Defendants until further order of the Commission.


4. Based upon the evidence herein and in light of all relevant factors I conclude that pursuant to S.C. Code Ann. § 42-9-20
John Bass, Jr. has sustained permanent partial disability which has permanently altered his earning capacity from a pre-accident
average weekly wage of $1,211.52 to a current weekly expectation of $280, which results in a weekly wage loss of $931.52.
Multiplying this figure by .667 equals $621.32, so the Claimant is entitled to the maximum compensation rate of $532.77 for
an accident occurring in 2001. I conclude that the Claimant has suffered this wage loss for the maximum period of 340 weeks
for permanent partial disability pursuant to S.C. Code Ann. § 42-9-20. I further find that the Claimant's partial disability began
after a period of total disability and therefore pursuant to said section the amounts paid for temporary total disability shall not
be deducted from the maximum of 340 weeks allowed for permanent partial disability.


5. The Defendants are responsible for the cost of past services rendered by Dr. A. Sale Estefano and Patricia Feigley for treatment
of the Claimant's psychiatric and psychological complications and the medications heretofore prescribed by Dr. Estefano in
connection therewith, and the Defendants shall hereafter be responsible for any continuing causally related treatment and
medications for those conditions, under the direction of Dr. Estefano, which tend to lessen the Claimant's period of disability
resulting from his accident-related psychiatric or psychological conditions. Dodge v. Bruccoli, Clark, Layman, Inc., 514 S.E.2d
593 (Ct.App. 1999).
 


AWARD


IT IS HEREBY ORDERED that the Defendants shall pay John Bass, Jr. 340 weeks of compensation at the rate of $532.77
per week as a result of his permanent partial disability without credit for temporary total disability benefits previously paid.
Additionally, the Defendants shall be financially responsible for previously incurred psychiatric and psychological treatment
rendered by Dr. A. Sale Estefano and Patricia Feigley and for all future psychiatric and psychological treatment under the
direction of Dr. Estefano so long as such treatment tends to lessen the period of the Claimant's disability under S.C. Code Ann.
§ 42-15-60.


*8  AND IT IS SO ORDERED.


March 18, 2003


 
South Carolina Workers' Compensation Commission


 
George N. Funderburk
Commissioner


2003 WL 22977624 (S.C. Work.Comp.Comm.)


End of Document © 2020 Thomson Reuters. No claim to original U.S. Government Works.
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To: Court Of Appeals Filings <ctappfilings@sccourts.org>
Cc: "lfalin@sccourts.org" <lfalin@sccourts.org>, Brooke Payne <bpayne@payneLG.com>
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Lynn,
 
Per our phone call, attached here is Volume 1 of the Record on Appeal.  Volume 2 will follow in a
separate email.
 
Please let us know if there is anything else you need.
 
Thank you!
 
Lori Wittel
Practice Manager
P: 843.732.6280 F:843.420.1440
www.PayneLG.com
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